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                                                                     Annexure-1 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2025 

 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
 
   
To, 
The Members,  
Utkarsh India Limited 
‘Arrjavv Square’,  
95A, Elliot Road, 4th Floor, 
Kolkata- 700016 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Utkarsh India Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”), 
CIN: U51109WB1995PLC070893. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 
opinion thereon.  

 
The Company’s Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of secretarial and other 
records and for devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws 
and Regulations. 
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report 
that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st 
March, 2025 (hereinafter referred to as “audit period”) generally complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 to the extent applicable 
according to the provisions of: 
 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder and amendment thereto; 
 

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder and 
amendment thereto;  
 

III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder and 
amendment thereto; 
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IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder and 
amendment thereto to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

 
V. Being an unlisted Public Company during the audit period, the following Regulations and 

Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ( ‘SEBI Act’) 
and amendments thereto were not applicable to the Company: 
 

a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015; 
 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 
 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021;  
 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible 
Securities) Regulations, 2021;  
 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations 1993;  

 
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2021; 
 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 
and 

 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
VI. Other than fiscal, labour and environmental laws which are generally applicable to all 

manufacturing/trading companies, no other laws/acts are specifically applicable to the 

Company. As reported to me by the Company the industry specific laws/ general laws as 

applicable to the Company including Sexual harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention and 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been complied with. 

 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards with regard 
to meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).  
 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
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I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,  
Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Women Director. The changes in the composition 
of the Board of Directors and its Committees that took place during the audit period were carried out 
in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation 
at the meeting. 
 
Majority decision is carried through and as none of the Directors in any meeting dissented on any 
resolution, hence there was no instance of recording any dissenting member’s view in the minutes. 
 
I further report that  
 
There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines. 
 
I further report that during the audit period the following major event took place having major 

bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules etc.: 

1. The Company has filed A Scheme of Amalgamation registered on 25th July, 2024 before the 
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata (CAA) No.144/KB/2024, pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 230-232 read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and 
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. This 
amalgamation is being carried out in order to consolidate business carried on by the group 
under one entity, strengthening of financial position with a wider capital base and increased 
leverage capacity of merged entity, optimum utilisation of resources, cost benefits etc. As per 
NCLT Order dated 2nd August, 2024, meeting of the Secured and Unsecured Creditors was 
required to be held for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving the proposed 
scheme of Amalgamation. Accordingly, meeting of secured creditors was duly held on Thursday, 
12th day of September, 2024 at 4:00 P.M. and meeting of the unsecured creditors was duly held 
on Thursday, 12th day of September, 2024 at 4:30 P.M. at the registered office of the Transferee 
Company. The proposed scheme of amalgamation was placed and duly approved by voting 
through polling paper in both the meetings.   

 
This Scheme of Amalgamation of twelve Companies namely, Wise Dealcom Private Limited, 

Yogmaya Vincom Private Limited, Precot Dealcomm Private Limited, Utkarsh Power Private 

Limited, Nayantara Distributors Private Limited, Cosmic Tracom Private Limited, Arundhati 

Suppliers Private Limited, Dover Tie Up Private Limited, Prestige Tie Up Private Limited , Raisin 

Tradecom Private Limited, Utkarsh Pipes Limited and Raj Laxmi Goods Private Limited 

(Hereinafter referred to as the “Transferor Companies”) with Utkarsh India Limited (Hereinafter 

referred to as the “Transferee Company) and their respective shareholders and creditors with 

April 1, 2024 as the appointed date has been approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law 

Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench vide its Main Order dated 21st March, 2025 (Rectified Order 

dated 19th June, 2025 and Certified Order dated 4th August, 2025. 
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2. The Company has added Main Objects of the Transferor Companies in its Memorandum of 
Association as per Clause 17.2 (Object Clause) of the Scheme of Amalgamation with effect from 
the appointed date i.e.1st April 2024 in the Board meeting dated 05.09.2025. 

 
3. During the year under review the following changes took place in the Authorised Share Capital of 

the Company due to the Main Order dated 21.03.2025 (Rectified order dated 19.06.2025 and 
Certified order dated 04.08.2025).  

 
The Authorized Share Capital of the Transferor Companies has been merged with the Transferee 
Company as per the scheme of Amalgamation. As a result, the Authorized Share Capital of the 
Transferee Company has been increased from Rs. 20,00,00,000/- to Rs. 22,56,90,000/-. 
 
Further, The Authorized Share Capital of the Company to be increased from Rs.22,56,90,000 

divided into 2,25,69,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs.30,00,00,000/- divided into 

3,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each by creation of 74,31,000 further Equity Shares of 

Rs.10/- each ranking pari passu in all respect with the existing Equity Shares of the Company 

and consequential amendment in the Capital Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the 

Company to be approved by the Members of the Company by passing Ordinary Resolution at 

their Annual General Meeting to be held on 30th September, 2025. 

4. In terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation, the Company shall issue and allot 1,33,49,898 fully 
paid up Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to the Shareholders of Transferor Companies with the 
approval of the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 
I further report that, to the best of my understanding, during the audit period, no other event/action 
took place in the Company having a major bearing on Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above 
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.  
 
This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure – I and forms an 
integral part of this report. 
 

                                             
                                                                      

                   

                                                                                

CS Divya Mohta 

Company Secretary in whole time Practice                                                                                                                                                      

COP No.: 17217 

M. No: A47040 

Peer Review Certificate No: 2773/2022 

Date: 05.09.2025 
Place: Kolkata  
UDIN: A047040G001175849 
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Annexure-I 

 
 
To, 
The Members, 
Utkarsh India Limited 
‘Arrjavv Square’, 95A, Elliot Road, 4thFloor, 
Kolkata- 700016 
 
 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 
 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that 
the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 
 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company. 
 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standard is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification 
of procedures on test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.  

 

                                                                           CS Divya Mohta 

Company Secretary in whole time Practice                                                                                                                                                      

COP No.: 17217 

M. No: A47040 

Peer Review Certificate No: 2773/2022 

               M. No.: A47040 
Date: 05.09.2025 
Place: Kolkata  
UDIN: A047040G001175849 



















AnnexureA to Indepcndent Auditor's Report 

Referred to in paragraph I under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' scction of our report to the 
members of Utkarsh lndia Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended 3| March 2025. 

X. 

xi 

X1. 

xiii. 

(c) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been 
applied, on an overall basis, for the purposes for which they were obtained. 

(d) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to 
us, funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long-term purposes. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that 
the Company does not have a joint venture but has subsidiaries and an associate and therefore we report 
that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations 
of its subsidiaries and associate company. 

() According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that 
the Company does not have a joint venture but has subsidiaries and an associate and therefore we report 
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries 
and associate company. 

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially 
or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the 
Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the 
management. 

. (b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the infomation and explanations 
given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. 
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)Xb) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(c) According to the infomation and explanations given to us, there were no whistle blower complaints 
received during the year by the Company. 

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting under 

Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related 
parties are in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related 
party transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required under Indian 

Accounting Standard 24 "Related Party Disclosures" specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

o CHARTERED 

ACCOUNTANTS 

RN.Mukher 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR,S REPORT

To the Members of Utkarsh lndia Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Utkarsh lndia Limited

(hereinafter referred to as "the Holding company''), its subsidiaries Dadi-Ma steels (lndia) Private

Limited and Maduvan Structurals LLP (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the

Group") which include the Group's share of profit in its associate, which comprise the consolidated

balance sheet as at 31 march 2025, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (includinS other

comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated

statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter

referred to as the "Consolidated FinancialStatements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and

based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements as were

audited by other auditors of the subsidiaries and associate as referred to in "Other Matters" section

below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies

Act, 2013 (,the Act,,) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the

lndian Accounting standards ("lnd A5") prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with companies

(lndian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally

accepted in tndia ofthe consolidated state ofaffairs ofthe Group and its Associate as at 31 March 2025,

their consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity

and consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on

Auditing (sAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act, 2013. our responsibilities under those

Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group, and its Associate in

accordance with the code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of chartered Accountants of lndia ("lcAl")

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial

statements under the provisions of the companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the lCAl's Code of

Ethics. we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained together with the audit evidence

v
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obtained by other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in "Other Matters" section below, is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial

statements.

lnformation Other than the consolidated financial statements and Audito/s Report Thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.

The other information comprises the information included In the Board's Report including Annexures to

Board's Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our audito/s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the

"Act" with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and

fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, including other

comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of

the Group and its Associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia,

including the lnd AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its

Associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its Associate and for preventing and

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and Prudent; and design, implementation and

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of

the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies

included in the Group and its Associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

V
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entities to continue as a Soing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the

Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its Associate is also

responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its Associate.

Audito/s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. we also:

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company, its Subsidiaries and

Associate, has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial

statement in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pollcies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's and its Associate's ability to continue

as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw

attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modifY our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the

audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group and its Associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

. 1- i---..'
",' )vl .t'

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk

of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control,
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or

business activities within the Group and its Associate to express an opinion on the consolidated

financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements

of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated

financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain

responsible for the direction, supervision and Performance of the audit carried out by them. We

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further

described in the section titled "Other Matters" in this audit report.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually

or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of

the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;

and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of Subsidiaries included in the Statement, whose financial

statements reflect total assets of Rs. 4,530.67 lakhs as at 31 March 2025, total revenues of Rs. 595,50

lakhs, total net profit after tax of Rs. 463.47 lakhs, and total comprehensive income of Rs. 453.36 lakhs

for the year ended 31 March 2025, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The

Consolidated Financial Statements also include the Group's share of net profit of Rs. 21.95 lakhs for the

year ended 31 March 2025, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements, in respect of the

associate, whose financial statements / consolidated financial information have not been audited by us.

These financial statements / financial information has been audited by other auditors and have been

furnished to us and in our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the

amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries are based solely on the reports of the

other auditors.

v



our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on

the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the

Holding Company's Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid

consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors;

(c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other

comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated

statement of cash flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books of

account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

(d) ln our opinion the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the lnd AS specified

under Section 133 of the Act, read with the companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

as amended;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and

taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory

auditors of its Subsidiaries and Associate, none of the directors of the Holding company,

Subsidiaries and Associate are disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director

in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated

financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report

in "Annexure A" to this report, which is based on the auditors' reports of the Holding Company, its

subsidiaries and Associate, wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Audito/s Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Group and its Associate has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial

position as on 31 March 2025 in its consolidated financial statements. Refer Note 42 to the

consolidated financial statements;

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Utkarsh lndia Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Page 5 of7

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated

financial statements;

,6
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and

Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its Subsidiaries and Associate during the year ended

31 March 2025.

iv. (a) The respective managements of the Holding Company, its Subsidiaries and Associate whose

financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other

auditors of such subsidiaries and associate respectively that, to the best of their knowledge

and belief, as disclosed in the Note 57(f)(i) to the consolidated financial statements, no

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or

kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such Subsidiaries and Associate, to or in

any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("lntermediaries"), with the

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the lntermediary shall,

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding company or any of such subsidiaries and

Associate ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf

of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.;

(b)The respective Managements of the Holding Company, its Subsidiaries and Associate whose

financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other

auditors of such subsidiaries and associate respectively that, to the best of their knowledge

and belief, as disclosed in the Note 57(f)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements, no

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the

Holding company or any of such Subsidiaries and tusociate from any person(s) or entity(ies),

including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in

writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such Subsidiaries and Associate

shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances and performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the Subsidiaries

and Associate whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has

come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under subclause

(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material

misstatement.

ii. The Group and its Associate does not have any long-term contracts for which there were any

material foreseeable losses. ln respect of derivative contract, necessary provisions have been

made for foreseeable losses wherever applicable; and,

)"/



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Utkarsh lndia Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
PaEe 7 of 7

Based on our examination which included test checks, and as communicated by the respective

auditors of the subsidiaries and associate, the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associate

have used accounting software for maintaining their books of account which have a feature of

recording audit trail facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant

transanctions recorded in the respective softwares. Further based on our test-checks

and as communicated by the respective auditors of the entities, we did not come across any

instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the year.

vi. The Boa rd of Directors of the Hold ing co m pa ny, its Su bsid ia ries a nd Associate have not pro posed/

paid any dividend for the year ended 31't March, 2025, hence compliance of section 123 of the

act was not required.

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable to the Holding company.

The Holding Company has paid/provided for managerial renumerations for the year ended 31 March

2025, in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated.

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the auditors of the respective entities included

in the consolidated Financial Statements in the companies (Auditor's Report) order.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Chortered Accountonts

Firm Registration No. 304138E

)

sAJ F

f

6," Utfrr4^^/";
,/v
iloi

cc

CA Aditya Madhogarhia

Portner

Membership No. 304771

7

UD|N: 253oe?*l BHLkrFAq3Q2

Place: Kolkata

Date: 5th September, 2025
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Ann€xure A to the lndependent Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'section of our

report of even date to the Members of Utkarsh lndia Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March, 2025.

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements under

Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'')

ln conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company as of and

for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the
consolidated financial statements of "Utkarsh lndia Limited" ("the Company''), its subsidiaries and

associate as on that date.

Managemengs Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its Subsidiaries and Associate are responsible

for establishing and maintaining internalfinancial controls based on the internal control with reference

to the consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company, its Subsidiaries and

its Associate considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on

Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered

Accountants of lndia ('lCAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance

of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associate based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls With reference to
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internalfinancial controls, both applicable to an audit of lnternal Financial Controls and, both issued by

the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply wlth ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting was established and

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial

statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend

on our judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by other auditor of
the Subsidiaries and Associate is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the

internalfinancialcontrols system with reference to the consolidated fina ncia I stateme nts.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

A company's interna I fina ncia I control with reference to the consolidated financial statements is a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to the consolidated financial

statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in

reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company; (z) provrdg. iq$oleble assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
r -_
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Annexure A to the lndependent Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our

report of even date to the Members of Utkarsh lndia Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March, 2025.

preparation of fina ncia I state ments in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could

have a materialeffect on the fina ncia I statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated

financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any

evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statemeots may

become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies

or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us and based on

the consideration of other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Holding

Company, its Subsidiaries and Associate have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to the consolidated financial statements and such internal financial

controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March

2025, based on the internal control with reference to the consolidated financial statements criteria
established by the respective entities considering the essential components of internal control stated in

the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute
of Chartered Accountants of lndia.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in so far as it relates

to the Subsidiaries and Associate, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor of such Subsldiaries

and Associate.

our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

ForDKchhajer&Co
Chortered Accountonts

Firm Registration No. 304138E

6.ufrry"11.
cA Aditya Madhogarhia

Portner

Membership No. 304771

UDIN: 2530{i*IgNLNFB 
'139 

2

Place: Kolkata

Date: 5s September, 2025
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Utkarsh India Limited
CIN I U51109W81995P1C070893
Consolidatgd Balance sheet as at 3lst March, 2025

As at 3lst March,2025 As at 31st March,2024
As per IND As

( I in Lakhsl
A5 p€r IND AS

{ r in Laths)

36,a29.O4
r77.42

1,405.94

4,966.33

611.03

970.80
96.31

1,085.62

513.59

31,567.42
188.03

202.88

s,295.42

511.22

4E2.91
74.36

754.52

450.49

21,248_38

249.61

3,033.70

50.00

222.10

1,888.22

45,550.48

49,460.30

39,631.65

37,541.43

24,370.90

11s.28

2,307.36

202-91

1,290.15

82,232.37 55,848.03

1,28,882.85 1,05,479,68

938.70

1,334.99
41,562.35

1,107.ls

15,s38.r2
43,836_04

9,914_63
3,566.19

159.64

374_41

1,889.70

329.87

38,245.47

t7,542.43

699.44

15,294.50

25.270.O4

20,736.98
566.21

1,338.98
569.54

2,259-20

244.7€.

61,454,34 50,939.71

r,28,882.8S 1,05,479.68

ASSEIS

l{on-Curenl A5set5

(a)Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) other lntangibleAssets

{c} Capital Work-in ProSress

(d)Ri8htof Use Assets

{e) lnvestment ln Property

lfl FinancialAs5et5
(i) lnvestments
(ii) lnvestments io associates
(iii) Other tinancial Assets

18) Other Non'Current Assets

Total l{on{urent Asrcts
Curent Assals

(a) lhventories

(b) Financial Assets

(ilfrade Receivables
(ii) ca5h.nd cash Equivalents

(iii)Bank Balances otherthan cash & Cash tquivalents

(iv) toans
(v) Other Financial Assel

lc) Other Current Assets

Total Curent Assets

Total Assats

EQUITY AiID IIABII.ITIES
[qutty
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) 5hare Capita I Pend ing Allotment
(clOther Equity

UABIUTIES

l{on-cu.rent LJ.bllhles

{a} Financial tiabilities
(l)Borrowings

(ji) Lea5e Uabilities

{ill) Other Financial Liablllties

{b}Other Non Current Uabilities
(clDeferred Tar Uabilities (Net)
(d) Provisions

Tot.l l{on{unent Uabilitler

Orrcnt Llabllhles

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i)EorowinSs
(ii)Lease Liabilities
(iiilTrade Payables

Total Outstanding Dues of Micro [nterprises and Small Enterprises
Total outstandinS Dues ofcreditors otherthan Micro Enterp.ises and Small

Enterprises,

{iv) Other Finan.ial Liabilities
(b)Current Tar Liabilities
(c) Other Current tiabiliti€s
(d) Provisions

Total curreht tlabllhler

Tolal Equity.nd uabllhle,

Materiai Acaounting Policy, lnformation

3

4

5

6

7

11

12

8
8A
9

10

18

1E.1

19

20
2L

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30
31

32

72

13

14

15

16

ll

The accompanyang notes form an intergralpart of the Co6solidated Fi6ancialStatementg

o *

co
*'
l*I

o
Chairman & ManaginS Dir€ctor

DtN .00297336 ,z
-3aL'
Punltraln

chief Fina ncial ofrlcer
PAN. AFCPJ530lT

For ond on behov ol the Bootd ol Dircctots

SunilBansal

FCS - 6923

Place:Kolkata

oate I Sth oay ofs€ptember 2025

CAAdltya Madhogarhla

Membership No.304771

Gupta

For O K Chhajer & Co.

Chortered Accountonts

H,fi",

Q'rr:qr

11,201.16
3,340.51

165.14

357.95

2,181.60

336.O7

38,724.27

2,732.65

I,a7L7a
302.57

23,722.56
589.55



Utkarsh India Limited
CIN : U51109W81995P1C07O893
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st March | 2025

Particulars Notes
As at 31st March,2025 As at 31st March, 2024

As pe.lND AS
( I in Lakhsl

As per IND AS

I t in Lakhsl
lncome
(a) Revenue From Operations

(b) Other lncome

Totallncome

Expenses

(a) Cost of Materials Consumed
(b) Changes in lnventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade

and Work-in- Progress

{c) Employee Benefits Expense

{d) Finance Costs

(e) Oepreciation and Amorti2ation Expense

(f)Other Expenses

TotalExpenses

Profit/(Loss) Before Share of Profit f.om Associates

Add: Share of Profit from Associates

Profit/(Loss) Betore Tax

Tax Expenses

(a) Current tax
(b) Deferred tax

(c) (Excess)/Short Provision of Tax relating to Earlier Years

TotalTax Expenses

Profit/(Loss) for the period

(Xher Comprehensive lncome
(a) ltems that wlll not be reclassified to Prorit or Loss

(i) Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan

lncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified

to Profit or Loss

Earnings per Equity Share (for Continuing Operation);

(1) Basic Earning per Share (in I )

(2) Diluted Earning per Share (in < )

Material Accounting Policy, lnformation

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

24

43

43

7-2

2,3t,197.98

1,600.19

2,27,607.50

1,009.08
2,32,794.t7 2,28,6t6.sA

7,83,373.44

(2,092.9s)

5,727.22

6,488.97

2,5t9.67

29,381.68

1,83,796.91

2,77O.84)

4,5r4.64

5,A27.O3

1,855.02

27,173.95

2,25,13A.O2 2,20,996.7 r

7,460.L4 7 ,619.A7

21.95 13.11

7,482.09 7,632.9A

1,695.19

266.36

5.93

L,97L.77

277.46

114.03

L,967.44 2,297.06

5,5L4.62 5,335.92

101.52

(2s.ss)

(33.8s)

8.52

7 5.97 (2s.33)

5,590.59 5,310.59

53.92

23.34

29.79

29.79

The accompanyjng notes form an intergral part of the Consolidate Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached.
For and on behalf of the Eoard of Directors

ForDKChhaier&Co.
Cha.tered Accountants
FRN 304138

Wu tA
unil Bansal mar Gupta

hairman & Managing Director
DtN - 00297336

CA Aditya Madhogarhia
Pa rtner
Membership No.304771 "/
Place: Kolkata

Date : 5th Day of September 2025

Punit lain
chief Financial Officer

PAN- AFCP'53017

Company Secretary
FCS - 6923

Total Other Comprehensive lncome/(Loss)

Total Comprehensive lncome /(Loss) for the Year



Utkarsh India Limited
CIN : u51r.09WB1995P1C070893
Consolidated statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 3lst March 2025

( { ln Lakhs)

2023-242024-25PARIICULARS

2,919.67

127.46
(67.s0

1663.22
235.46

(484.54

75.91

1,460.14

{10.e1}
312.04

3,579.A4

1,85S.02
(80.s1)
(42.88)

1521.14)
200.19
(10.s7)
(2s.33)

(9.80)

285.78
3,226.17

1,679.81

14,217.61
60.02

(400.s6

796.91

1726.34

\3,228.84
(11,918.87

(120.32
(598.08

11,010.42

12,126.21

12,924.49

(1,711.80

165.50
1,454.31

119.90
121.32

(1,635.141

404.41
479.02
182.06

12,515.97

t2,49L.40

2,666_66

9,949.31za4.z1

(s,438.54

\179.a7
80.51

(163.24

9.80
42.88

on.62
527.L4

(84.14)

10.91
67.50

(63.10)

663.22

(8,s98.42

16.27

21.46

(s,432.9417,960.36

856.35

{1,398.23
(813.37)

3,284.63)

1202.34
1,226.54
2,385.58
3,579.24

(4,639.88(169.46
(123.s1)

258.19
194.39
135.28

135.282a9-61

Cash flows from Operating aciivities
Net Profit before tax
t{on- Cash adiuJtmenl to te.oncile protll belore tax to be caih llows :

Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses

Loss/ (Profitlon Sale ot Property, Plant and Equlpment

Loss / (Profit)on Sale ofShares
lnterest lncome
Deferred Tax Asset/ Liabilities
Fair value of lnvestment
Remeasurement (Gain)/Loss on net defined benefit Plans

Dividend lncome

Allowance For Expeded Credit Losses

lnterest Expenses

oper.tlng Proflt belore worklnt capltal changer

Movements in Wo.klng capltal:
lncrease / ( Decrea5e) in Trade Payable

lncrease / (oecrease) in Short Term Provisions

lncrease / ( Decrease) in Current Liabilities
lncrease / ( Decrea5e)in Financial Liabilities

lncrease/ ( Decrease)in Bank Ealance Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalent5

Decrease / (lncrease) in Trade Receivables

0ecrease / (increase) in lnventories

Decrease / lincrease) ln Financlal A5set5

Decreare / llncrease) in Otl'er Current Assels

Cesh generaled from / ( used ln) Operatloni
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash flow from / (used lnl Operating Adlvltles ( A)

Cash flows lrom lnvedin8 actlvltles

Cash flows from Financing Activlties
lncrease / (decrease)in Lease liabilities

Proceeds trom / (repayment o0longterm borrowinSs (net)

Proceeds from / (repayment of)short term borrowings (net)

lnterest paid

Net cash flow from / (used ln) ln Flnanclnt Adlvlties ( c )

Net lncrease / (d.crearel in Cash and Cash Equlvalents ( A+B+C)

Opening Salance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

C 05ing Balance of cash and cash Equivalents

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (including cwlP)
Purchase of lntangible Assets

Loss/( Profit)on Sale of Property, Plant and Equlpment

Decrease/(lncrease) in Non Current Financial fusets

0ividend lncome

Loss / (Profit)on Sale ofShares

oecrease / (increase) in Non Current Assets

lntere5t Received

Net cash flow trom / lused lnl lnveiting Actlvltlei ( g)

B

c

The accompanying notes are an lntegralpan otthese consolidated financialstatements'

Previous year Iigures have been regrouped /rearranSed wherever n€cessary to conlorm to this years classification

o'
.o
t* Fl(

A

o
OLK

6t,u&1,

mber 2025

l(umar Gu

ethod as set out in lnd A5 -7, 'statement of Cash Flows'Note: The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepar ed under the'lndirect M

For and on behalfofthe Board of 0irectors

nilBansal

[rembership No. 304771
Punlt,,aln

chief Financial Officer
PAN. AFCPI53OlE

Place:(olkata
oate : 5th DaY of Se

ForDKChhajer&Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN 304138E

Company Secretary

FCs - 6923
Chairman & Nranaging Director

DrN ' 00297336CA Aditya MadhoSarhia

Partner

All fiqures ln brackets are outflow
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Restat€d

balance at
the betinnln8
of lst April,
2024

ChanSei in

capltal
durint the Ealance at !1st

March,2025

changes ln

Equity Share

Capitaldue to
prior perlod

changes on
account of
MerSer &
Amaltamatio
n etled

Balance at 1st April, 2024

768.451,707.151 707 _15

Changes In

equlty share

caPltal
durint the

curent year

Salance at 31st

March, 2024

ChanSes on

MerSer &
Amalt.matio

n efted

Restated

balance at
the beBinnint

ot 1rt April,

2023

Chant€s an

Equity Share

capltalduc to
prlor p€rlod

t,707.15 101.151,707.15

utkarsh India Limited

CIN : USr1O9WB1995PLC07O893

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025
Q'r:r=:

Equity Share capital

(1) Current Reporti IinLa

2 rti Period \ in Lakhs

8. Other Equity
{ in Lakhs

Reseruer and Surplus

5urplu5 Earnings
5ur

change ln

30,785.58

808.58

s,335.92

"50.67

-367.42

25.33

35,538.32

15,880.52

56.42

5,335.92

(2s.33)

21,247 -61

(25.33)

25.33

5,610.73

3,523.45

(330.79)

8,803.39

4,574.71

4,974.11

4,106.29

(4,105.29)

614.21

(36.63)

517.Sa

Restated balance at the
beSinninS oI th€ reportlng
period
Adiustment on account of
Amalgamation

Proflt for the Year

Other Comprehensive

lncome/Iossfor the year

Adjustment on account of
consolidation
TranJfer from Retained

Earnincs

Balance at 31st March.2024

1,334.99

1,334.99

36,538.324,514.13 21,247.63s77.54 8,803.391,334.99

riod

Re5tated balance at the
beginnint of the reportint

5,514.62

-566.54

75.91

17s.97)

75 91

5,514.62

15.97

(1,334.99) 768.45

Profit for the Year

Other Comprehensive

lncome/Loss for th€ vear
Adjustment on account of

Amalgamation
Transfer from Retained

Earninga
fransler to Retained

Earnints

4,574.73 26,834.22Balance at 3lst March.2025

to. and on behall ofthe Board of Directors

of September 2025

,{

ilEansal

ln terms of our reoort attached

Place:(olkata

Date : 5th

Punhlaln
Chief Financial Otficer

PAN. AFCPJ53OlE

Chairman & Managing Director

DrN,00297335

Company Secretary

FCS - 6923

E

-

@@

@E E@

Balanc€ at lst April, 2023

304138€

a)

AJDKChhajer&Co.

Aditya Madhogarhia

No.304771

%*hJ"*



h) The financial stat

all items of assets, I

group transactions.

1 Corporateinformation
Utkarsh lndia Limited ("the Holding Company " or "UlL") is a public limited Company domiciled in lndia and incorporated on

5th April, 1995 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The holding company is engaged in the manufacturing and selling

of Black /G,1. Pipes, Poles, Steel Structure, Metal Beam Crash Barrier, M.S.Wire, Solar Structure, Railway Sleepers being its

Engineering Products segment and CPVC, U PVC,PVC,SWR Pipes & Fiitings, HDPE Pipes, Garden Pipes being its Polymer

segment. The manufacturing units are located at.langalpur (Howrah) & Gurap (Hooghly) and the holding company is selling its

product on pan lndia basis and export to many foreign countries. The holding company is also engaged in etection and

installation of its product in few cases.

The holding company has 2 subsidiaries - Dadi-Ma Steels lndia Private Limited ("DMSPL') and Madhuvan Structurals LLP

("MSLLP") and an Associate company- Utkarsh Metal lndustries Private Limited ('uMlPL") (the holdinS company, its

subsidiaries and associates are together referred to as the "Group" hereinafter.

2 Basis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies

The material accounting policies applied by the group in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such

accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements in accordance

with IND AS accounting standard, unless otherwise indicated.

The functional and presentation currency of the group is lndian Rupee (t) which is the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the Group operates. The financial statements are presented in t and all values are rounded to the

nearest Lakhs (100,000), except where otherwise indicated.

The consolidated Financial Statement of the group has been prepared to comply with the lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS)

lnduding the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, amended from time to time The

Consolidated Financial Statements comprises of all its subsidiaries and Associates, being the entities that it controls. Control is

assessed in accordance with the requirement of lnd AS 110-Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in (<) lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

Principles of Consolidation

(a)Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation effective 1 Aptil 2024, Group DMSPL became a subsidiary of the Group. The

combination has been accounted for in accordance with Appendix C to lnd AS 103 "Business Combinations of Entities under

Common Control" using the Pooling-of-lnterest method.

(b)The assets, liabilities and reserves of subsidiary Group have been recorded at their existing book values.

(c)The investment of { 107.16 lakh in subsidiary has been eliminated against the share capital of the subsidiary Group DMSPL.

The difference has been credited to Capital Reserve.

(d) The Scheme of Amalgamation merger of group company under common control became effective 1 April 2024 and hence

the company UIL become holding company of D|\4SPL. ln accordance with Appendix C to lnd AS 103, the financial information

for F\ 2023-24 has been restated as if the combination had occurred from 1 April 2023. Consequently, the investment of {

410.69 lakh representing the holding Company's equity shares held by subsidiary Company has been eliminated on

consolidation. t 79.86 lakh has been deducted from Share Capital and 1330.83 lakh from Securities Premium. The adjustment

has been made for restatement purposes only and does not affect the legal capital structure of the Holding Company.

(e)The identity of each reserve of subsidiary comapnies has been preserved and aggregated with the corresponding reserves

of the Group.

(f) No goodwill or bargain-purchase gain has been recognised.

(g) The investment in Associates- UMTPL has been accounted for using the equity method prescribed by lnd AS 28 fl10-11'

Under this method, the investment is initially recorded at cost and is subsequently adjusted for the Group's share of the profit

or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate.

ements of the Holding Group and its subsidiaries are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together

o
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The List of Subsidiary Company, associates which are included in the consolidation and Group holdings therein are as under

Name of the Group
Nature and Extent of control as on

31st March 2025
Country of lncorporation

DADI-MA STEELS (INDIA) PW LTD Subsidiaries {50.61%) lndia

N/adhuvan Structurals LLP nvestment ln Partnership Firm (95% lnd ia

Utkarsh Metal lndustries Private Limited Associates (39.37%) lnd ia

2.1a Statement of Compliance

Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) as per the Companies

(tndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ( as amendement for time to time ) notified under Section 133 of Companies Act,

2013, (the 'Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act.

For all periods upto and including the year ended 31st March 2022, the Group prepared its Financial Statements in

accordance with requirements of the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021

, as amendement from time to time and other provision for the act (herein after refer to as previous GAAP)

2.2 Historical cost convention
The Financial Statements have been prepared under going concern basis at historical cost convention on an accrual basis,

except for the followig items:
(i) Financial instruments that are measured in terms of relevant lnd AS at fair value / amortized cost at the end of each

reporting period.

(ii) lnventories are valued at lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value.

2.3 currentversus Non-current Classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Consolidated balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An

asset is treated as current when it isi

. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

utkarsh rndia Limited Q*;s='
Not€s Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

i) profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as lnventory and Property, Plant

and Equipment, are eliminated in full.

j) The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting poticies for like transactions and other

events in similar circumstances.

k) The carrying amount of the parent's lnvestment in each subsidiary is offset (eliminated) against the parent's portion of

equity each subsidiarY.

l) The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities as on the date of disposal is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss being the profit or Ioss

disposal of investment in subsidiary.

n) The Group accounts for its share of post acquisition changes in net assets of associates, after eliminating unrealised profits

and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
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Provisions

estim ates.

A liability is current when:
'It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

, lt is held primarily for the purpose of trading

. lt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

2.4 Use of estimates
ln preparing the financial statements in conformity with lnd AS, management has made estimates, judgments and

assumptions which affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as at the

date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting are recognized prospectively.

Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their
affects are disclosed in the notes to financial statements.

Critical Estimates & judgements
The areas involving critical estimates orjudgments are as follows

Estimation of defined benefit obligation

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity pian and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial

valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these

assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

lmpairment of trade receivables

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The

management uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on

the Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing as material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within next financial year.

i. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and lntangible assets

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values, if any, of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets at the end of each reporting period. During the current financial year, the management determined that there were no
changes to the useful lives and residual values of the property plant and equipment and intangible assets.
ii. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities.

and Conting ent ties are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
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2.5 Property, Plant and Equipment

i. Recognition and initial measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost. which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is

located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any

other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
lf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as

separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Properties in course of construction for production, supply or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. All the direct expenditure related to implementation including incidental expenditure incurred during the
period of implementation of a project, till it is commissioned, is accounted as Capital work in progress (CWIP) and such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.
ii. Subsequent expenditure

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day to day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred,

iii. Disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future benefits are expected from its use

or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net within other
income/ expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

iv. Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided under the Straight Line Method (SLM) at the rates determined
based on the useful life of the respective assets and residual values in accordance with Schedule ll of the Companies Act, 2013.
The residual values are not more than 5/o ol the original cost of the asset.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset category Management estimate of useful
life

Useful life as per Schedule ll to the
Companies Act, 2013

Buildings

Plant and l\4achinery

Office equipment
Furnitures and fixtures
Vehicles

Electrical lnstallation
Software

Computer

30 -60 Years

05 -20 years

5 years

10 years

8-10 Years

10 Years

3 Years

3 -6 Years

30-

15

10

10

10

5

3-6
Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment acquired/disposed off
with reference to the date of addition/disposal

Depreciation on PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended us

ded on pro-rata basis

i
.r/
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v. De-recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment or its components is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and

loss when the asset is derecognized.

2.6 lntangible assets
i. Recognition and initial measurement
lntangible assets are recognised when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the Group, it is probable that the
future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and cost of the asset can be reliably
measured.lntangible assets are recognised when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the Group, it is probable

that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and cost of the asset can be

reliably measured.

ii. Subsequent measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to

which it relates.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value. Amortisation
is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a written down value basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets

from the date that they are available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

2.7 lmpairment of Non Financial Assets
Tangible and lntangible assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for impairment. ln case events and circumstances
indicate any impairment, recoverable amount of assets is determined. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss, whenever the carrying amount of assets either belonging to Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or otherwise exceeds
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of assets fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. ln
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows from the use of the assets are discounted to their present value at
lmpairment losses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. Based on such assessment at each
reporting period the impairment loss is reversed and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. ln such cases the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that have been determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years,

2.8 lnventories
lnventories are valued at the lower of cost and the net realisable value. Cost is computed on a 'First ln First Out' basis. The
cost of finished goods and stock in process comprise raw material, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads up to the relevant stage of completion incurred in bringing the inventory to present location and condition. Bought
out items are valued at cost of purchase. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

2.9 Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The 6roup recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets. , ' :

^/
,,. i .:, i
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i. Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is

available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciaon and impairment losses, and

adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilies. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities

recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease

incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term and the estimated useful

lives of the assets, The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

ii. Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease

payments to be made over the lease term. The Iease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be

paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably

certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminang the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group

exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as

expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condion that triggers the

payment occurs. ln calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease

commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement

date, the amount of lease liabilies is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. ln

addion, the carrying amount of lease liabilies is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in

the lease payments (e.9., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease

payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

2.10 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can

be reliably measured.
(i) Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being when the products are

delivered to the customer. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped or delivered to the specific location as the
case may be, the risks of loss has been transferred, and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Sale of products include
related ancillary services, if any.

Goods are often sold with volume discounts based on aggregate sales over a 12 months period, Revenue from these sales is

recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume discounts. Accumulated experience is

used to estimate and provide for the discounts, using the most likely method, and revenue is only recognised to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. A liability is recognised for expected volume discounts
payable to customers in relation to sales made until the end of the reporting period. No element of significant financing is

deemed present as the sales are generally made with a credit term of 30-90 days, which is consistent with market practice.
Any obligation to provide a refund is recognized as a provision. Receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered to
customer or its carrier as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due. Sales are presented unts, rebates and GST collected

*

H

*
c o

o

ts( l(A1



Utkarsh India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Service Contracts

Revenue from sale of services is recognised on monthly basis based on the portion of services provided during the month.
Revenue from sale of services is measured as per the terms of the contract, net of credit notes or other deductions.
Variable Consideration

The nature of the Group's contracts gives rise to several types of variable consideration, including claims, unpriced change

orders, award and incentive fees, change in law, liquidated damages and penalties, The Group recognizes revenue for variable

consideration when it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur.

The Group estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using the expected value (i.e., the sum

of a probability-weighted amount) or the most likely amount method, whichever is expected to better predict the amount. The

Group's claim for extra work, incentives and escalation in rates relatinB to execution of contracts are recognized as revenue in

the year in which said claims are finally accepted by the clients. Claims under arbitration/disputes are accounted as income

based on final award. Expenses on arbitration are accounted as incurred.

Claims - are recognised on its approval from client/ authority/courts decision or its surety of receipt (not on assessment)

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Group considers whether the amount of

variable consideration is constrained. The Group determined that the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained

based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic conditions. ln addition, the uncertainty on the

variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

B) Contract Balances

Contract Assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. lf the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a

contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets represent revenue recognized in

excess of amounts billed and include unbilled receivables. Unbilled receivables, which represent an unconditional right to
payment subject only to the passage of time, are reclassified to accounts receivable when they are billed under the terms of
the contract.

Trade Receivables

A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is

required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in point 2.13 of
Accounting Policies - Financial lnstruments.
Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. lf a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods
or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is

earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract. Contract liabilities include unearned revenue which represent amounts billed to clients in excess
of revenue recognized to date and advances received from customers. For contracts where progress billing exceeds, the
aggregate of contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits (or minus recognlsed losses, as the case may be), the
surplus is shown as contract liability and termed as unearned revenue. Amounts received before the related work is
performed are disclosed in the balance sheet as cont y and termed as advances received from customers
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lnterest lncome
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (ElR). EIR

is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial

instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost

of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the management estimates the expected cash flows by

considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options)

but does not consider the expected credit losses. lnterest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and

loss.

Dividend lncome

Revenue is recognized when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders

approve the dividend.

lnsurance claims
lnsurance claims are accounted to the extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims.

2.11 Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) that is

reasonably estimable, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obliSation.

Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where the effect of time value of money is significant, provisions are measured at the present value of management's best

estimate required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the

present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

liability. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of
- a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle

the obligation.
- present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

- a possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow of resources is not remote.

Contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic

benefits is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date

2.12 Government Grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached

conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a sl6tematic basis

over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an

asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset. When loans or similar
assistance are provided by governments or related institutions with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate,
the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a gove rnment grant

o
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2.13 Financial lnstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

(a) lnitial Recognition & Measurement
The Group recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables

which are initially measured at transaction price. Transactions costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of
Profit and Loss (FWPL)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilties, as

appropriate, on intial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial

liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. Regular way
purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date i.e., the date at which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

(b) Classification of Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified to be measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (FWOCI) or FWPL.

Financial asset is measured at amortlsed cost if it meets both of the following conditions:
.The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (ElR) method. Amortized cost is

calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR.

The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in

the profit or loss.

Financial asset is measured at fair value through OCI :

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions

are met:

. the financial ass€t is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows

selling financial assets and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Such instruments are measured at fair value at initial recognition as well as at each reporting date fair value movements are

recognised in the Other Comprehensive lncome ('OCl'), lnterest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign

exchange gain or loss are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss

previously

recognised jn Ocl is reclassified from equity to statement of profit and loss. lnterest earned on such instruments is reported

as interest income using the EIR method,

Further, the Group may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition, to classify as FVOCI, particular investments in equity
instruments (except equity instruments held for trading) that would otherwise be measured as FWPL. The Group makes such

an election on an instrument by-instrument basis. Such lnstruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition as

well as at each reporting date. All fair value changes are recognised in OCl. There is no recycling of amounts from OCt to
statement of profit and loss, even on derecognition. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain/loss within equity.
Dividend received on these equity investments is r t and loss statement
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Financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss:

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair valued through profit or loss. The

Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FWPL, which

is thereafter irrevocable. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or

recognition inconsistency (referred to as'accounting mismatch'). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at

FWPL.

(c) Derecognition of Flnancial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.€. removed

from the Group's Balance Sheet) when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or the Group has

transferred its rlghts to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full

without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement, and either (a) the Group has transferred

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the

risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

(d) lmpairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair

valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an

amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-

month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured

at lifetime ECL.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade

receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade

receivables and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are

updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement

of profit and loss (Profit and Loss). This amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses' in the Profit and Loss.

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The

allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment

allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(e) Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount isreported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets

and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(f) Classification as Debt or Equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the

substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity lnstruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its

liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group a sed at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs
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Utkarsh India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration

recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other

payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short

maturity of these instruments. The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings.

Loans and Borrowings- After initial recognltion, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the EIR method. 6ains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as

well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR, The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the

statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

(g) Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Group's balance sheet when the obligation

specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from

the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability The

difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

(h) Reclassification of Financial lnstruments

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no

reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are

debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes

to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Group's senior management determines change in the business

model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group's operations, Such changes are evident to

external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is

significant to its operations. lf the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the

reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model.

The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
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Utkarsh India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financia! Statements
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Original Classification Revised Classification Accounting Treatment

Amortised Cost FWPL

Fair value is measured at reclassification

date. Difference between previous

amortized cost and fair value is

recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Amortised Cost

Fair value at reclassification date becomes
its new gross carrying amount. EIR is

calculated based on the new gross

carrying amount.

Amortised Cost FVTOCI

Fair value is measured at reclassification

date. Difference between previous

amortised cost and fair value is

recognised in OCl. No change in EIR due

to reclassification.

FWOCI Amortised Cost

Fair value at reclassification date becomes

its new amortised cost carrying amount.

However, cumulative gain or

loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value.

Consequently, the asset is measured as if

it had always been measured at

Amortised Cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI

Fair value at reclassification date becomes

its new carrying amount. No other
adjustment is required.

FVTOC FVTPL

Assets continue to be measured at fair
value. Cumulative gain or loss previously

recognized in OCI is reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss at the
reclassification date.

ACC0uri r&{is

FWPL



Utkarsh India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financaal Statements

Q=:l=

2.14 Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either.

'ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or
' ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
' Level L - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
' Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised ln the Consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the management
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Tha Cza,'a'c h.^.d6h6n+ .lalarm;^ac rh6 aaliriac :ai ^r^^6.1,,,a. f^. h^rh /6.''i.i^d f.ir,,.t''a ma..',/6ho^+ .,..h ..
At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to

be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major

inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant

documents.

2.15 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
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Utkarsh India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a

substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other

borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing cost includes exchange differences arising from

foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as adiustment to the interest cost.

2.17 Foreign Currencies

The functional currency of the Group is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in which it operates

The functional currency of the Group is lndian National Rupee (lNR).

The transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of

exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting year, monetary items denominated in

foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are

denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

2.18 Employee Benefits
(a) Short term Obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months

after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employee's services

up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(b) Post Employment Obligations

Defined Benefit obligations
. The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined

benefits obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is

calculated annually by actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit Method at the year end.

' The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by

reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the

terms of the related obligations.

' The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the

farr value of plan assets. This cost is included in Employees Benefits Expense in the statement of profit and loss.

, Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized

in the period in which they occur, directly in Other Comprehensive lncome. They are included in retained earnings in the

statement of changes in equity.
. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are

recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past service cost
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Utkarsh India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

etermination of baslc earnings per share to take into account the
associated with dilutive potential equity shares and the weighted
bee n ing assuming the conversion of all dilutive potentia I

Defined Contribution Plans

The Group makes contribution towards Provident Fund and Employees State lnsurance Scheme under a defined contributjon
retirement benefit plan for qualirying employees. Under the said scheme the Group is required to contribute a specific
percentage of pay roll costs in respect of eligible empl oyees. The contribution is recognized during the period in which the
employ be renders service.

(c) Other Long Term Employee Benefit Obligations

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured annually by actuaries as the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the
projected unit credit method. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss through other comprehensive income/loss.

2.19 Taxation

lncome tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current Tax:

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to
the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax

amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. lt is measured using
tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that lt is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. ln addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recocnition of soodwill.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

2.20 Earnings per share:
Basic earninBs per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year,

Diluted earnrngs per share adjusts the figures used in the d
after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
average number of additional equity shares that would have
equity shares.



Utkarsh India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.21 lnvestment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
lnvestment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are shown at cost. Where the carrying amount of an investment in
greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is

transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds

and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The lnvestment in unquoted shares other
than in Subsidiary has been measured at cost other than Fair Value as the impact of recording the same at Fair Value on the
financial performance would be immaterial.

2.22 Corporate Social Responsibility
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of
its average net profit for the immediate preceding three financial years on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities. The

areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute
care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability e.t.c. The Group contributed the CSR amount to a Registered TRUST

operating for the above mentioned activities.

2.23 Security Deposits

ln applying the Group's accounting policies, management has exercised judgement in respect of security deposits given. lnd AS

109 requires such financial assets to be initially measured at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. However, since the deposits are given to a large number of parties with individually insignificant balances,

management has concluded that the effect of discounting these deposits would not have a material impact on the financial

statements. Accordingly, such deposits have been carried at their transaction value. This assessment is reviewed periodically

and, if the aggregate impact of discounting is considered material in future periods, the Group will apply the requirements of
lnd AS 109.

2.24 Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs 1"MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(lndian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31st March, 2025, MCA has not notified
any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Group.
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Utka6h India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements As at 3lst March, 2025

13) Property, Plant and Equipment

B!ildins

1,14O,55 12,810.54 11,599.23 524.96 220.90 806.92 r00.19 14,550,76

1,360.30 5,161.50 115.40 !2616 49.57 288 80 94.94 7,214,7E

(20.21) (2.r9) {22.39)

7,140.55 t4,!70.84 16,762,83 700.36 853.43 266.47 7,095.12 152.95 41,743.15

788,43 1,613.51 114,64 167.19 89.73 166.78 42.65 1,9E2.94

450 19 t,141.14 51.41 103 28 l8 04 107.63 29 49
1,931.1'

1,238.62 2,154.65 176,05 210.41 121,77 274.4t f2,14 4,914.11

1.144.55 72.932.22 524.31 582.96 13E.70 821.31 80.E1 36,829.04

7,740.55 12,022,11 9,985.72 410.32 711.77 640.14 57.54

i) fhc gtoug has not rcvolueel ony ol it' Propefty, Plont & Equipments duting the Finonciol veo. 2024-25

name of the €ompanres within the Group, ex.ept lor the followint which a.e nol neld in the nahe ofthe 6roup;

Oer.ription of Propeny
belnr h€ld ln

Group

{4) l.t.ntlble Ar.ers

at :llit MaEh,2014

At 3lst March,2025

At 3lst Mo.ch,2024
Amortisation tor th€ year

At 31n Motch.2025

At llst March,2025

At 3let March,2024

50.38

97.68

171.82

188.03

li) tatangibh o*tt und.t tLwtopd.at - Nit

lii) No indi@tot ol ihpoi nent w.t i.kanfied dunng th. cufient Fot, h.a.e intongibt. ors.ts wea .ot Ert d Jd ituFatn.nt.

15) C.?h.l wo*-ln'Pror!$ I t h [.rh5)

Ar 3lrt Mar.h, 2014 202.88
1,405.94

{202.E8)
Ar !lst 2025 1,405_94

:)
r\

rs/
a)l
o1,

/i

14,00E.1E

37,567.42580.28

23E.41
81.47

319.E8

14E.06



Utkarsh India l-imited
otes Forming Part of t}le Consolidated Financial Statements As at 3lst March, 2025

Copitol Wo*1a-Prcg,ett Agei.e Schedule tor 31ta Morch, 2025:

C!pltal Wortln-Protress
Amount ln C.pital Wort-1.-P.otr.s tora period of

1,405 94 1,405 94

Projects temgorarily susrended

CoFitol Wotk-ln-P.og..ts Ag.ing Sch..lule lot 3rst Mo..h, 2024:

C.pltal Work-ln-Protr ess

Amount lo Capitalwo.lln-Protreisfor a perlod of

202 88 202,88
Proiects temDorarilv r!sDended

Ihechanger ln thecarrying value ofROU arsetsforthe Yearended 31 March,2025 are as rollowr:

erceeded th. cninot d nncloes os p.t otiginol ploo.

Ar at 3lst March,2024

Ar at 31rt M..ch,2025

AG.umulat€d oepr€clatlon
As at 31rt March.2024

Ar at 31rt M...h, Z0Z5

As al3l,st Ma.ch, 2025

As at31st March,2024

5,723.16
161.73

5,884 91

427.76
490.82
918.58

4,965.33
5,295.42

based otr mutual a8r€emcni of the GrouD and the terror!.

PaymenG mad€ forshonter.n lcase and teases oftowvaluear€ expospd on a straitht line basls over ti€ leaseterm.

A chante ln lhe allocation arsumPtions nay have an lmpact on the mearuremcnt oflease tiabfilies and rhe retared righr-or-us€ assetr.
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Utkarsh India Limited
Notes Forming Part ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March, 2025

Note - 7 : lnvestment Property

Total lnvestments

Q.xs:l

(l in takhs)

rc. \\

Eil
C

,SI€,'IED
u,,iiAris,

As at
3lst March,2025

As at
3lst March,2024Particulars

Amount Amount

677.22

30.86

(31.0s)

594.26

16.96

511,03 6t1.22

Gross Carrying Amount

As at 01st April

Additions

Disposalsfiransfers

As at 31st March

Accumulated Depreciation and lmpairment

As at 01st April

Depreciation charge for the year

Deductions/Transfers

As at 31st March

Net carrying amount 611.03 677.22

Note - 8 : Non Current lnvestments (l in Lakhsl

PARTICULARS

No of Units Amount

As at
31st March,2025

As at
31st March,2024

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March,2024

A. lnvestments Measured dt Foir Volue
Through Prolit dnd Loss (FWPL)

(i) unquoted - (Fully Paid upl
lnvestment in Mutual Funds
-Baroda BNP Paribas Fund

(ii) Unquoted - (Fully Paid Up)
lnvestment in Bullions

(iii) lnvestment in equity lnstruments
(UnQuoted)

National Stock Exchange of lndia

1,00,125.47

50,000

99,985.00

30,000

23.43

747 .37

800.00

18.90

109.01

355.00

Total of I nvestments measured at Fair Value
Through Profit and Loss 970.80 482.97

As at
31st March,2025

As at
3lst March,2024

PARTICULARS

Amount Amount
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

a,
7.. 4 970.80 482.91-

(l in takhs)

\



Utkarsh India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March, 2025

Note 8.1 Category-Wise lnvestment

(..xr*g:r

( < in takhs)

PARTICULARS

As at
3lst March,2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Amount Amount

970.80 482.97

Total lnvestments 970.80 482^91

Note - 8A : lnvestment in Associates ( < in takhs)

PARTICUTARS

No of Shares Amount
As at

3lst March,2025
As at

3lst March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
3lst March,2024

(i) lnvestment in equity lnstruments
(unquoted)

ln Associotes

lnvestment in other lndian companies equity
instruments unquoted trade (Lower of Cost

or Market value)

16,56,681 r.6,56,681 96.31 74.36

Total of lnvestments 74.36

Detoiled Break-up ol lnvestment in Associotes

As at 31st March 2024As at 31st March 2025

Amount
Number and

percentage of Share
Amount

Number and
percentage of

Share

PARTICUTARS

16,56,681 (39.37%) 96.31 16,56,681 (39.37%)

ln Associotes

Utkarsh Metal lndustries Private Limited

95.31 74.36Total

t in Lakhs)

h./

Financial assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

96.31

74.36

\



Utkarsh India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March, 2025

<{'.!aaat

Note 9 : other FinancialAssets (Non-Current)

Ar at
31st Mar.h, 2025

As at
3151 Ma,ch, 2024

Particular5

357.18

118.41

610.03

306.76

84.67

367.09

Security 0eposits
Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity(8lven as margin money for BG)

Bank Deposits

1,085.62 7s8.52Total

a rn Lakhs

Note - As per IndAS 109, the amount of Refundable Security Deposit paid against Lease has been amortised/ discounted to Present Value. Every year depreciation

as char8ed on ROIJ Asset created and Finance lncome is recognised on discounted Refundable Security Deposit as per lndAS in P&L

Note 10 : other Non Current Assets (I ln Lakhil

Particulars
As at

31st March,2025

Aa at

31st Mar.h, 2024

CapitalAdvances 513.59 450.49

Total 513.59 450.49

Note 11 : lnventories (l in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at

3lrt Mar(h,2025

As at
3lst Mar.h, 2024

Valued at Lower of Cost or Net Realirable Value:

Raw Material

Work in Progress

Finished Goods

Consumable, Stores & Spares Parts

22,281.17

6,407.23

19,632.88

1,133.02

12,655.39

1,418.46

76,468.70

938.88

Total 49,460.30 37,541.43

Note- tnvento et dmounting ao <49,460.30,00 lokhs (PY: <3r,541.43.00 lokhs) ote hypothecoted to bdnks ds colldterul secwlty qgolntt Cosh Crcdit boftowlngs,

The sdid locilities ore secured by woy oJ hypothecdtion ol inventories ond trode receivobles ol the Holding compony, @nking pd potsu with othet contortlum

membet bdnks.
HAJ
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llst March 2025 31st March, 2024

Unsecured - Conridered Good

Credit lmpaired

Less:Allowance for DoubtfulDebt/ Expected Credit Loss

27,244_34

312.04

24,370_94

245.74

21.W.42
(312.04)

24,656.68

(28s.78)

Total 21,284.34 24,370.90

Utkarsh India Limited

t{otes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statem€nts As at 3lst March, 2025

Note t2 : Trade Receivables (Current)

Movement in Exp€<ted Cr€dit loss Allowance

Ageing As at 31st March 2025

(r in Lakhs)

q'.r

( I ln Lakhs)

profit o.loss,

3lst March 2025

As at
31st March,2024

Balance at the Eetinning ofthe Year

Lessr ActualBad Debts Duringthe Year

Add: Provision for Expected Credlt [oss Allowance of Trade Receivable calculated at [ifetime Expected Credit Loss

285.78

26 26 23.98

261.80

Closint Balence at the Yeer End 312.04 28s.78

Outstanding forfollowing periodsfrom due date of payment

Not Oue
[e!s than 6

months
5 months -1year 1-2 years 2-3 y€ars More than 3 years Total

(i) Undhputed Trade receivables -
considered Bood
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
which have siSnificant increage in

credit rhl
{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired

liv) Disp!,ted Trade Receivables

considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-

which have significant increase in

credit risk

{vi} Dasputed Trade Receavables-

credit impaired

!ess: Allowance for Credit Iosses

25,955.95

{233.60)

1,366.63

12.46

{41.36)

109.76

21 18

\9.17l,

57.65

(8.6s)

lt _23

(19.31)

21,432.34

158.12

(312.09)

Total 25,722.35 1,337.33 tzt.77 49.00 s7.92 21,244.37
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Utkarsh India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March, 2025

Ateint as at Srst Mar(h, 2024

(rs=

(l in r.akhs)

OutstandlnS for followint periods from due det€ of paym€nt#

Not DUe
Less than 5

months
6 months -1year l-2 years z'3 years Iotal

(i) Undisput€d Trade receivables -
considered good

(ii) Undlsputed Trade R€ceivables -
which have signlflcant lncreas€ in

rredh risk
(iii) Undisp uted Trade Receiva bles -

credlt impaired

liv) Disputed Trade Receivebles

considered good

(v)oisputed Trade Receiv.bles -
which hav€ significant increase in

credat risk
(vi)oisputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired

L€ss: Allowance tor credit losres

23,3s6.99

lz33.s2)

1,135.93

21.18

(34.71)

57.65

(4 04)

71_23

(11 s8)

7.10

(1.93)

24,497.92

163 77

(285.78)

Total 23,123.47 L,122.40 s3.61 65.65 5.74 24,370.90

Disclosure ofTrade Receivables due from Debtors exceedinS l0% ofTotalTrade R€(eivebl€s:

lin

Nam€of Debtors Exceedin8 10%otTotalTrad€ Receivables
As at

31st March 2025

%otTotal
Receivablet

Ar at
31st March 2024

% ofTotal

Larsen &Toubro Ltd

Techno Electri€ & Engine€ring Company Lamited

3,472_72 14.79%

2,557.47 9_37%

TotelTrede Receiv.ble 27,2aA.3a 14.79% 24,370.90 9.37%
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Notes Forming Part ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March, 2025
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Note 13: Cash and cash Equivalents ( I in takhs)

Particulars
As at

31st March 2025

As at
3lst March, 2024

Balances with Banks :

(i) Current Account
(ii) Debit Balance ln Cash Credit Account
(iii) Other Balance with Bank

cash on Hand

103.02

o.62
2.43

28.81

Total 289.67 135.28

Note 14 : Bank Balance(Other Than Cash and Cash equivalents) ( t in takhs)

Particulars
As at

31st March 2025

As at
31st March,2024

Bolonces with Eonks :

-ln Margin money 3,033.70 2,307 .36

Total 3,033.70 2,307.36

Note 15: Loans (< in takhs)

Particulars
As at

3lst March 2025

As at
3lst March,2024

Loans and Advances

Total s0.00

Note l6:Other Financial Assets (Current) (< in takhs)

Particu la rs
As at

31st March 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Staff Advance

Balance with Govt. Authority
Security Deposits

103.07

28.67

90.36

L10.48

8.30

84.13

Total 222.r0 202.97

Note 17 : Other Current Assets (< in Lakhs)

As at

3lst March, 2024
Particulars

629.05

136.48

738.54

384.15

0.72

870.80

10.00

409.23

65T Receivable(Net)
Balance With lncome Tax Authorities (Net of Provision for lncome Tax - Rs 1659.11

Lakh)

Advance to Suppliers

Advances to others
Prepaid Expenses

1,888.22 1,290.15Total

E
q

tt

Y
o
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7 4.97
63.05
13.64

138.01

50.00

As at
31st March 2025



Utkarch India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March. 2025

Note 18 : Equity Share Capital ({ in Lakhsl

Particulars
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Number of
sharei

Rs
Number of

shares
Rs

Authorlied capltal

2,25,69,000 {P.Y. 2,00,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

(25,69,q)0 Equity ihares of Rs. 10/- each pureuant to the scheme of Am.ltam.tion on
account of Consolld.tlon ofTwelve (12)ofTransfero, companles authorlsed capital)

(Reter t{ote No 52)

lssued, Subscrlbed and paid-up

1,01,85,000 (P.Y. 1,78,70,500) Equity shares of 10/- each fully paid up

Less: Cancellation of treasury shares held by subsidiary company (OMSPL)

(75,84,500 Equlty shares of 10/- each fully paid up elimlnated due to Transferor

companies holdlngs in Transreree company)

(7,99,000 Equity rhares ot 10/- each Iully paid up eliminated as treasury shares held by
the s!brldlary ompany on account ofmerger ofgroup aompanles)

lRele, t{ote No 52)

2,25,69,OOO 2,256.90 2,00,00,000 2,000.00

2,2s,59,000 2,255.90 2,0o,00,000 2,000.00

1,01,86,000

(7,99,000)

1,018.50

-79.90

1,78.70.500

(7,99,000)

1,787.05

-79.90

93,87,000 938.70 L,7O,7L,5O0 707.15

Note 78.7 : Share Cdpitol Pending ollotment
I in Lakhs

* As per Main Order dated 21,03.2025 (Rectified Order dated 19.06.2025 and Certified Order dated 04,08.2025)of Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata 8ench, the Scheme

of Amalgamation of Wise Dealcom Private Limited (WDPI-), Yogmaya Vincom Private Limited (WPL), Precot Dealcomm Private Limited (PDPL), Utkarsh Power

Private Limited (UPPL), Nayantara Distributors Private Limited (NDPL), Cosmic Tracom Private Limited (CTP[), Arundhati Suppliers Private Limlted (ASPL),

Oover Tie-tjp Private Limited (DTUPL), Prestige Tie-Up Private Limited (PTUPL), Raisin Tradecom Private l"jmited (RTPL), Utkarsh Pipes Limited (UPt) & Raj

Laxmi Goods Private l-imited (R|-GPL) (Transferor Companies) has been sanctioned with Utkarsh lndia Lamited (Transferee company) w.e.f. 01.04.2024.

Pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation 1,33,49,898 number of shares of Rs. 10/' each to be issued to the shareholders of Transleror Companies by

Transfer€e company.

a) Re.onciliation o, Equity Shares Outstanding at the Bednnint and at the end of the Year

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

1,334.99Share Capital S!spense/Pending allotment I

(1,33,49,898 eq!ity shares of Rr. 10/- ea.h to be irsued to the ihareholder! of transferor
copmanles puBuant to the lcheme of amalgamation with the Holding company)

1,334.99

Partiaulars
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No of shares (Amount in <) No o, shares (Amount in l)
Equity shares at the beSinning of the year

Less- Changes during the year *
1,78,70,500
(76,84,500)

1,787.O5

(768.4s)
7,7A,10,500 1,787.O5

Equity shares at the end of the year 1,01,86,000 1,018.50 1,7A,70,500 L,787.O5

*76,84,500 Equity shares of 10/- each fully paid up cancelled on account of merger



Utkarsh India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March, 2025

alrg:r

b)Terms / ridrtr attached to equlty thares

The HoldinS has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per equity share. Each holder of equitv share is entitled lo one vote per equity

share. Divadend if any, proposed by the Board of Oirectors i5 subject to the approval ofthe shareholders in the ensuing Annual General MeetinS. ln the event

of liquidation of the holding company the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaaning assets of the holding after distribution of all

preferential amounts including in respect of preference shares issued, if any. The distribution will be an proportion to the number of equiW shares held by the

equity shareholders.

c) oetails ol shareholders holdint more than 5% sharer along with numbet ot ihares held:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder
As at 3lst March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No. of share5 No. of shares % Holding

Equlty rhares ot Rs 10 ea.h tully pald

utkarsh Metal lndustries Private Limited

SunilBansal
Dover Tie-up Private Limited'
Precot Oealcomm Private Limited*

Wise oealcom Private Limited'
Bansal Poles Limited

Utk.rsh Bansal

Total

37,13,4@
23,84,825

14,75,000

11,28,175

37.O4%

23.4L%

14.48%
11.08%

17,73,4@
8,44,423
17,82,000

17,01,000

1s,09,000

14,75,000

Lr,28,17s

21.72%

13.35yo

9.97%
9.52%
8.44yo

8.25%
6.37v.

87,51,400 46.0t% 1,37,53,400 76.960/0

.(Reter Note No 52)

(d) Promoters' Shareholdlng

Name of the Promoter

As at 3tst March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No. ot
shares

% ortotal
Jhares

%.hange during
the year

No. of
shares

% of total
shares

% change

during the year

SunilBansel

Utkarsh Bansal

shreya Bansal

sunil Eansalas Karta ofsunilKumar BansalHUF

23,84,82s
!1,2E,175
1,87,500

14,000

23.41%

11.08%

1.84%

0.14%

9A4%
4.47%
0.74%

0.06%

23,44,82s
71,28,775
1,87,500

14,000

13.97Yo

6.61%

L.TO%

0.08%

fotal 37,14,500 36.47% 14.77% 37,14,500 21.76%

ACC0UNIAXiS

Y

*
t

o
t
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Utkarsh India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st l.larch, 2025

l in Lakhs

Note 19: Other Equity

Particulars As at
3lst March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

764.45
4,106.29

{4.106.29)
768.45

577 .58 6t4.2t
(38.2e)

1.66

577.54 577.58

8,803.39 5,610.73
3,523.45

{330.79)

8,803.39 8,803.39

4,574.73 4,574.73

4,374.73 4,574.73

1,334.99

(1,334.99)
1,334.99

1,334.99

15,880.62

56.41
(2s.33)

5,335.92

21,247 .62

7 5.91

5,514.62

26,838.21 21,247.62

(2s.33 )

2 5.33

7 5.97

(7s.s7 )

(a) General Reserv€
Balance as at the Eeginning of the Period

Adjustment On account of Amalgamation
Balance as at the End of the Period

(b) Capital Reserve

Balance as at the Beginning of the Period

Less: Elimination of lnvestment in subsidiary company (DMSPL)

Less: Elimination of lnvestment in Subsidiary LLP (MSLLP)

Addi On account of Amalgamation
Balance as at the End ofthe Period

(cl Securities Premium Reserve

Balance as at the Beginning of the Period

Add: On account of Amalgamation
Less: Elimination ot portion ot treasury shares held by subsidiary

company {DMSPL)
Balance as at the End ofthe Period

(d) Revaluation Reserve

Balance as at the Beginning of the Period

Changes during the year

Transferred from OCI

Balance as at the End of the Period

(el Amalgamation Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the period

Changes during the year

Transferred to Share Capital as Pending Allotment
Balance as at the End ofthe Period

(f) Retained Earning

Balance as at the beginning of the period

Add: On account of Amalgamation

Add: Transferred from OCI

Add: Profit after Tax for the year

Less: Appropriations
Transfer to General Reserve

Balance as at the End ofthe Period

(g) other comprehensive lncome
Balance as at the beginning of the period

changes during the year

Actuarial Gain/Loss on remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Transferred to Revaluation Reserve

Less: Reclassification to Prof itlloss
Balance as at the End ofthe Period

36,538.3241,562.35TOTAL

CHARIEREOk
o

o
f

,
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Utkarsh India Limited
Notes Forming Part ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March, 2025

(-.-e==r

(i)General reserve
Under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net profit at a specified
percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. Consequent to the introduction of the Companies Act, 2013, the
requirement to mandatory transfer a specified percentage of net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn.

(iil Securities Premium Reserve

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in securities premium

(ill)Capital Reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act ,1956 a Capital reserye was created through the transfer of amount due to amalgamation

(iv) Retained Earnint
Retained Earnings are created from the profit/loss of the group as ad.,usted for distributions to owners/shareholder, transfer
to other reserves, etc, Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Group.

(vl Other Comprehensive Income
The group has elected to recognise remeasurement in Defined Benefits Paid through Other Comprehensive lncome

t{.AJ

o
t
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o
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Utkarsh India Limited

Notes Forming Part ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements As at 3lst March, 2025

t in L.khs
Note 20: Borrowings (Non-Curr€ntl

Parliculars 31st
March 2025

As at
31$ March, 2024

Secured Loons
T€am Loans

Rupee loan from Sanks (secured)

Rupee Loan from a Body Corporate (secured)

Term toan from 8an*s (secured)

Hlae Purchase Finance

From Banks (Secured)

From e Body Corporate (Secured)

Unsecured Loan5

Loan From Bank and Financial lnstuitions

Others

Lessr Currenl Maturitiei ol long term boraowingi

Rupee loan from Banks (Secured)

Rupee loan from a Body Corporate {S€cured}

Term loan from 8ank, (Secured)

From Eanks {Secured)

From a Eody Corporate {Secured)

7,038.38

31s.00

1,638.95

102.s7

247 _83

1,533.33

3,255.00

(1,658.23)

(140.00)

(994.08)

125.45)

(141.15)

4,821.O7

874.62

2,907.52

102.15

25a.77

1,350.00

3,256.65

(1,698.32)

1s59.62)

(1,262.00)

(41.54)

(40.68)

Total 11,201.15 9,974.63

Natuae orsecudtyand terms ot repaymeht tor securcd borowlngs

1) Vehicle loar

commercial vehi.le is secured aSainst hypothecation of respective assets. Loan Repayment period is 48- 84 Months and the rate of interest ranging
ltom 7 .35% to'l .5%

Vehicle Loan Secuaities Loan Amouht Sanctioned Terms ol Repayment

lndian Sank (WS-02AU,9231) Hypothecation of vehicle purchased out of bank 9.00
60 equal monthly installments
of Rs 18,465 starting from 7th
February 2024.

lndian Bank (W8-02AU 9228) Hypothecation o. vehrcre ourchased out ol bank 9.00
60 equal monthly installments
of Rs 18,600 starting from 7th
February 2024.

Baok of Baroda (WB-o2AU-2316) Hypothecation ofvehicle purchased out of bank 8.96

51 equal monthly installments
of Rs 18,459 starting from 1fth
August 2023.

Bank of Baroda (WB-02AU-2319) Hypothecation ofvehicle purchased out of bank 8.96

60 equal monthly installments
of R5 18,459 starting from 10th
September 2023. The

installment ha5 been chanSed

to Rs 20,290/,

BMW Financial Services (WB-02A Hypothecation of vehi€le purchased out of bank 129.98

36 equal monthly installments

of Rs 246,064 starting from lst
October 2023.

rcrcr BANK rTD. wB 02A5-7356

h..
Hypoth€cation of vehicle purchased out of bank 1.t5

39 equal monthly installments
of Rs 20,937 starting from 1st

August 2022.

o
I
*o

t



Utkarsh India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March, 2025

(rxll=

BOB WB-02A5-9012 Hypothecation ofvehicle purchased out ofbank 9.00
60 equal monthly installments
of Rs 18,654 startinS from loth
September 2022.

808,W8-02AS,902r Hypothecataon ofv€hicle purchased out of bank 9.22

60 eq ual month ly ;nstallm€nts

of Rs 18,818 5tarting from loth
September 2022.

BO8 WB-02AS-9126 Hypothecation of vehicle purchased out of bank 9.14
50 equal monthly installments

of Rs 18,654 startina lrom 10th

September 2022.

rctcr BANx tTD-wB-191,6957 Hypothecation of vehicle purchased out of bank 25.00

59 equal monthly installments

of Rs 52,789 startinS from 15th
october 2023.

MERC W8 02A5'9669 Hypothecation of vehicle purchased out of bank 169.00

36 equai monthly installments

of Rs 300,612 startin8 from 18th

September 2022.

rNDraN B-W802AV 7933 Hypothecation of vehicle purchased out of bank 8.78

50 equal monthly installments

of Rs 18,056.00 startinSfrom
7th Oecember 2024.

TNDTAN 8-W802AV 7938 Hypothecation of vehicle purchased out of bank 8.78
60 equal monthly installments

of Rs 18,056.00 startinB from
7th December 2024.

INDIAN 8.WBO2AV 7948 Bypothecation of vehicle purchased out of bank 8.92

60 equal monthly rnstallments

of Rs 18,3214.00 startinB from
7th oecember 2024.

INDIAN B,WBO2AV 7953 Hypothecation of v€hicle purchas€d out of bank 8.92

60 equal monthly jnstallments

of Rs 18,344.00 starting from
7th December 2024.

INDIAN S,WBO2AV 7982 Hypothecation of vehicle purchas€d out of bank 8.78

60 equal monthly inst.llments
of R5 18,056.00 startint from
7th oecember 2024.

8MW FtN StR-W8018C54 Hypothecation of vehicle purchaled out of bank 70.36

1st lnstallment of Rs

1,04,335.00 and 35 equal

installment of Rs 1,14,875

sarting from 15th lrarch 2025

Y

i
t
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Utkarsh hdia Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March, 2025

2)Term [osns

Se.urities
Loan Amount S.nctloned
(<)

Terms OI Repayment

Puniab National Bank

First Charge on fixed assets of the manufacturinB unit
situated at Jalan lndustrial Complex, Village Jangalpur

& in the unit situated at NH-2 Durgapur Express way
on pariparu basis with other term lenders.

Second charge on stock, book debts and other current

assets of three company on par;-paru basis with oth€r
term lenders.

Personal Guarantee Siven by Mr. Sunil Bansal.

3,000.00
18 equal Queterly lnstallment

of Rs 1.67 crore startinS from
.iune Quarter 202+25.

lClClEank Ltd

charSe established on commercialproperties: Units 2

and 3 o. the 2nd floor, and Units 1to 5 oh the 4th
floor of95A Elliot Road, Ariha nt/Arrjaw Sq uare, P.S.

D,rl? <i.act \fu"r.l N. 61 Lal!,ta-7nal Ol

480.00
180 equal moothly installments

of Rs483,997 stadinS f.om 10th

lanuary 2024.

lndian Sank 7275004396

Secured by pari passu first charg€ on fixed assets of
the HoldinB company situated at lalan lndustrial

complex, Villag€ - lanSalpur, P.S. - Andul Mouri, Dist -

Howrah, W.B. & at N.H.'2, 0urgapur Express Way,

P.O./P.S. Gurap, Dist - HooShly, w.B. (excluding assets

acquired on H.P basi, and by pari passu second charge

on stocks, book debts & other current assets ofthe

1,200.00

18 equal quarterly installments

of Rs 54,54,546 startinS from
29th April 2023.

lClCl Bank Ltd LBCAL2g25022

charge established on commercial properties:Arrjaw

Square, 95A, Kolkata 700016 641.00

lClCl Eank Ltd.-

rBcAr-00004647961

CharSe established on commercial propertie5:Arrjaw

Square, 95A, Xolkata 700016 240.00

lclCl Eank Ltd.-

18cA100004949687

Charge established on commercial properties:Arriaw

Square, 95A, Xolkata 700016 115.00

59 equal monthly in lta llm ents

of R5 1,51,656 startin8 from

10th May 2019.

lClCl Bank Ltd.

18CA10005055752

Charge established on commercial prop€rties:Arriaw

Square, 95A, Kolkata 700015
200.00

60 equal monthly installments

of Rs 2,68,194 startinS from
10th August 2019.

lClCl Bank Ltd.

18CA100005905193

CharSe established on commercial propertie5:Arrjaw

Square, 95A, Kolkata 700016 340.00
190 equal monthly installments

of Rs 3,15,185 startingfrom 5th
Februarv 2022.

lclCl Bank Ltd.-

tsci100005905195

Chargeestablished on commercial properties:Arrjaw

square, 95A, xolkata 700016 210.00

190 equal monthly installments

of Rs 1,94,673 rtartinS from 5th

February 2022.

TATA CAPITAL. 21846164

Secured by pari pas5! fir5t charge on fixed assets of
the Holding company situated atJalan lndustrial

complex, Village - Jangalpur, P.S. - Andul Mouri, Dist -

Howrah, W.B. & at N.H.-2, Durgapur Express Way,

P.O./P.S. Gurap, Dist - Hooghly, w.B. (excluding assets

acquired on H.P basis)and by pari passu second charge

on stocks, book debts & other cu(ent assets ofthe
Holding company.

1,000.00
13 equal quarterly installment5

of Rs 35,00,000 sta.tinS from
lstJanuary 1900.

The banks will hold a second charge position,

subordinat€ to the existing credit facilities, in terms of
both the underlyinS security and the cash flows
dpsisnated for reoavment.

374.00
24 equal monthly installments

starting from 28th March 2022

Uco Bank-GECL ll

The banks willhold a s€cond charge position,

subordinate to the exlsting credit facilities, in terms of
both the underlying security and the cash flows

desitnated f or reoaYm€nt.

484.00
24 equal monthly installments

of Rs 11,88,413 starting from
24th March 2022.

27 equal monthly installments

of Rs 8,35,341 startin8 from
1fth AuSust 2016.

20 equal monthly installments

of Rs 3,86,756 starting from
10th September 2018.

sBr- GECr-



Utkarsh hdia Limited

Notes Forming Part ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March, 2025

3)Unsecured Loan

' Lo.n trom gody Corporate- Sank - fhe Rate of lnterest on Loan t.ken from Other Body Corporate is 9.15% P.a

The banks will hold a second cha.ge position,

subordinate to the exlsting credlt facilities, ln terms of
both the underlying security and the cash flows
designated for repayment.

128.00

24 equal monthly installments
of Rs 2,66,666 starting from

30th March 2022.

lndian Bank - GECI -ll

The banks will hold a second charSe position,

subordinate to the existinS.redit facilities, in term5 of
both the underlyinS security and the cash flows

designatedforrepayment.

1,874.00
26 equal monthly installments

startin8 hom 10th lune 2022.

lndian Benk - GECL'll
(Extension)

The banks willhold a lecond cherge position,

subordinate tothe existing credit facilities, in terms of

both the underlyinS s€curity and the cash flows

designated for.epayment.

1,r50.00
47 equal monthly installments

starting from 31st March 2024

TNDtAN T1,7808367280

secured by pari passu first charge on fixed assets of
the holding company situated at Jalan lndustrial

Complex, Village - langalpur, P.S. 'Andul Mouri, Dist'
Howrah, W.B. & at N.H.'2, Durgapur Express Way,

P,O./P.5. Gurap, Diat - Hooghly, W.B. {excluding assets

acquired on H.P basis)and by paripassu second charSe

on stocks, book debts & other current assets ofthe
Holding aompanv.

10.00
20 Quarterly lnstallment to be

paid staning From May 2025

HDFC B L!d-800207008
Charge established on commercial properties:Arrjaw
square, 95A, Kolkata 700016 260.00

120 equal monthly installments

starting from 7th September
zo24

HDrC E trd-800206851
Charge established on commercial properties:Arrjaw
Square, 95A, xolkata 700016 362.00

120 equal monthly installments

starting from 7th September

2024

INOIAN BANX.TL.06558

Secured by pari passu first charge on fixed assets of
the Holding company situated at Jalan lndustrial

Complex, villaSe-Jan8alpur, P.S. -Andul Mouri, Dist-
Howrah, W.B. & at N.H.-2, 0urSapur Express Way,

P.O./P.S- Gurap, 0ist - Hooghly, W.B. (ercluding atsets
acquired on H.P basis) and by paripassu s€cond cha.ge

on stocks, book debts & other current assets of the
Holding company.

10.00
20 Quarterly lnstallment to b€

paid starting From May 2025

INDIAN BANK TL.3O29

Secured by pari passu first charge on fixed assets of
the holdinS company situated at lalan lndustrial

Complex, Village -Jantalpur, P.5. - AndulMouri, Dist

Howrah, W.B. & at N.H.-2, Durgapur Express way,
P.O./P.S. Gurap, oist - Hooghly, W.B. (excluding asset5

acquired on H.P basis)and by paripassu second charge

on stocks, book debts & other current assets ofthe
Holding company.

3.16
20 Quarterly lnstallment to be

paid starting From May 2025

' Loan trom tody Corporate- Othe.s - The unsecured loan taken from Body Corporate G payable a5 on 30th April 2027. Rate of lnterest on Loan taken

from Other Body Corporate is 12% P.a

t
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Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March, 2025

Reter Note No 57 - Leose Liabilities

Q-+

Note 21 : Lease Liabilities - Non Current (< in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at

31st March 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Lease Liability 3,340.51 3,566.19

Total 3,340.51 3,565.19

Note 22 : Other Financial Liabilities - Non Current (t in takhs)

Pa rticu la rs
As at

3lst March 2025

As at
3lst March, 2024

Security Deposits 159.64

Total 159.64

Note 23 : Other Liabilities - Non Current

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2024

Deferred Lease lncome 3 5 7.9s 37 4.47

Total 357.95 374.47

Note 24: Deferred Tax Assets/tiabilities (Net) (t in Lakhs)

As at
31st March, 2025

As at

3lst March, 2024

Deferred tax liability arising on account of:
Fair valuation of lnvestments recognised in profit or loss

On account of depreciation

Finance Income on Security Deposits against Lease

Reversal of Contractual Rent Payment taken as expense in IGAAP

Actuarial Gain through other comprehensive income

Gross deferred tax liabilities (A)

Delerred tax asset arising on account of :

Finance Expense on Lease Liability

Depreciation on ROU Asset recognized on Lease Treatment

On Account on Employement Benefits

Depreciation on Prepaid Lease Rent/ ROU Asset of Security Deposit

Expected Credit Loss

Actuarial loss through other comprehensive income

Gross deferred tax assets (B)

371.56

L,879.L7

14.60

L4Z.5L

25.55

283.O2

1,679.LL

9.23

58.14

2,039.s0

94.23

107 .7t
27 .42

t6.42
6.61

13.86

6.04

8.5 2

257.79 149.80

2,181.60 1,889.70

ER
o
o
+

ito

165.14

165.14

(l in Lakhs)

As at
31st March 2025

Particulars

2,433.39

77 .62

43.76

Deferred tax liabilities/ (assets) (net) (A+B)



Utkarsh India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March, 2025

Q,,{..i51.r

24.1 : DEFERRED TAX tlABltlTlES (NET) (Continued) (< in Lakhs)

Deferred Tax Balance in Relation to
As at

1st April, 2024

Recognised/
Reversed

through PL

Recognised/

Reclassified
through OCI

As at
31st March,2025

Fair valuation of lnvestments recognised in

profit or loss

On account of depreciation

Finance lncome on Security Deposits against

Lease

Reversal of Contractual Rent Payment taken as

expense in IGAAP

Actuarial Gain through other comprehensive

Finance Expense on Lease Liability

Depreciation on ROU Asset recognized on

Lease Treatment

On Account on Employement Benefits

oepreciation on Prepaid Lease Rent/ ROU

Asset of Security Deposit

Expected Credit Loss

Actuarial loss through other comprehensive

income

(283.02)

(1,679.11)

(e.2 3)

(68.14)

77 .62

43.76

13.86

6.04

8.s2

(88.s4)

(200.07)

(s.37)

(74.36\

L6.62

63.3 5

27 .42

2.56

0.5 7

(2s.ss)

(8. s2 )

(371.s6)

(1,879.17)

(14.60)

(142.s0)

(2s. ss )

94.23

107. r1

27 .42

L6.4?

6.6L

Total (1,889.70) (2s7.83) (34.07 ) (2,181.60)

Note 25: Provisions (Non Current) (1in Lakhs)

Pa rticu la rs
As at

31st March 2025

As at
3lst March, 2024

Provision For Gratuity 336.07 329.87

Total 335.07

Reler Note No 46 - Notes on Employee Benefits Obligotions

Note 26 : Borrowings (Current) (1in takhs)

Particulars
As at

31st March 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

secured

(a) Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings
(b) From Banks

Working Capital-Cash Credit
- FCNRB (Foreign Currency Non-Resident account)

2,969.91

19,356.53
796.t2

3,602.15

16,529.63

60s.20

Total 23,L22.55 20,736.98

A
C)

I ror-\(

o
oY
t

JE

329.47



Utkarsh India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st Marth, 2025

(i) Nature of security for Cash Credit Facility

(Tree-=.

(ii) Details of Cash Credit Facility Availed
({ in takhs)

* The debit Balance of the Cash Credit Facility availed has been shown under the head Cash and Cash Equivalents (

Refer Note No 13)

The Holding compony hos filed monthly returns or statements with the bonks in lieu of the sonctioned working capital

focilities, which are in ogreement with the books of account other than those os set out below.

Reoson of Difference- Monthly stotement submitted to the bdnk is based on the unodited books of occount os on 28th
Morch 2025 whereos the omount appeoring os per books ol occounts is as per dudited financiol statement os on 37st
Morch 2025.

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

DCB Bank *

HDFC Bank

IDBI Bank *

lndian Bank

PN B Bank

5Bl Bank

Union Bank Of lndia i
UCO Bank

(o.se)

3,000.00
(11.48)

8,483.47
3,5 28.55

3,471.79
(s0.e7)

873.32

(0.62 )

3,592.4t
t32.79

6,696.29
t,434.43
2,204.57

L62.18
2,306.95

Total L9,293.49 16,529.01

Name of the Eank

Aggregate

working
capital limits
sanctioned

Amount
disclosed as

Per monthlY
return/state

ment

Amount as per books

of account
Difference

lndian and Consortium Bank 32,500.00 9,266.03 72.39

Note 27 : Lease Liabilities - Current (< in takhs)

As at
31st March 2025

As at

31st March, 2024
Pa rticu lars

5 89.5 5 s66.2LLease Liability

589.55 566.21iffiERN
Leose Liobilities

Working Capital facilities from banks are secured by pari passu first charge on stocks, book debts and other current
assests of the Holding company and pari passu second charge on fixed assets of the Holding company situated at Jalan

lndustrial Complex, Village - Jangalpur, P.S. - Andul Mouri, Dist - Howrah, W.B. and at N.H.-2, Durgapur Express Way,

P.O. & P.S. Gurap, Dist - Hooghly, W.B. (excluding assets acquired on H.P. basis). Further the same has been guaranteed

by a director of the Holding company and is repayable on demand.

Name of the Bank

9,193.64



Utkarsh India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March, 2025

Q-':::r::

Note 28: Trade Payables (Current) ( I in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at

31st March 2025
As at

3lst March,2024

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

699,44

38,728.27 25,270.O4

Total 39,427.65 25,zLO.O4

{ in takhs

Particu lars
As at

3lst March 2025

As at
31st March,2024

1. Trade Payables - Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises

a. Principal & lnterest amount remaining unpaid but not due as at period end

b. lnterest paid by the Group in terms of Section 16 of Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises
oevelopment Act 2006 along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond
and appointed day during the period.

c. lnterest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid

but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006.

d. lnterest accrued and remaining unpaid as at period end

e. Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to small enterprise.

699.44

Ageing as at 31st March 2025

I in Lakhs

Particulars Less than I year 1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3

years
Total

i. Undisputed- Micro and Small

Enterprises

ii. Others

iii. Disputed dues - Micro and

Small Enterprises
iv. Disputed dues - Others

699.44

38,728.21

Total 39,427.55 39,427.65

Ageing as at 31st M arch,2024
{ in Lakhs)

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3

years
Total

i. Undisputed- Micro and Small

Enterprises

ii. Others

iii. Disputed dues - Micro and

Small Enterprises

iv. Disputed dues - Others

25,270.O4 25,270.O4

2s,210.04Total 25,270.O4

t

o
Y

t

AJE

LK

599,44

38,728.21

Particulars



Utkarsh India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements As at 31st March, 2025

Q,.-.1--.

Note 29 | Other Financial Liabilities - Current ( I in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at

3lst March 2O2S

As at
31st March,2024

Creditors for Capital Goods

Liability for expenses

Creditors for Expenses

Outstanding Salary

a7 .89

1,617.08

18.27

409.42

2a.27

986.25

27.4t

303.05

Total 2,132.66 1,338.98

Note 30: Current Tax Liabilities (Net) ({ in takhs)

Particulars
As at

31st March 2025

As at
31st March,2024

Provision for lncome Tax (Netof Advance Tax -P.Y Rs105.00Lakh) 77.61

Total 77.67 s69.54

Note 31 : Other Current Liabilities ll in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at

31st March 2025

As at
31st March,2024

Advances Received from Customers

Statutory Remittances

Deferred Lease lncome (Due within 12 Months)

1,643.13

272.73

76.52

1,103.16

7,r49.52

16.52

Total 7,477.74 2,269.20

Note 32: Provisions- Current ({ in Lakhs)

Particula rs
As at

31st March 2025

As at
31st March,2024

Provision for Bonus

Provision for Leave encashment

Provision for Gratuity

163.67

73.81

65.09

132.08

52.79

63.89

Total 302.57 244.76

ACCOUIIINTS

o
o

Y
o

*t

AJ

LK

569.54
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Notes Forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

Note 33 : Revenue From Operations ( l in Lakhs)

For the Year Ended

31st March 2025

For the Year Ended

31st March 2024

Operating revenue
Sale of Products (Al

Sale of Products (Net of Returns)

Other Products - Scrap

Other Operating Revenue

Sale Services B

Sale of Services

2,24,L30.73
5,518.35

84.93

463.96

2,20,824.24
6,577.06

34.89

Total Revenue from rations 231,r97.98 2,?7 ,607 .50

Note 34: Other lncome ( I in Lakhs)

For the Year Ended

31st March 2025

For the Year Ended

31st March 2024

lnterest income on
-Fixed Deposit
-Others

Dividend From lnvestments

Miscellaneous receipts

Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transaction

Net gain Arising On lnvestment Measured at Fair Value through

Profit and Loss

Finance lncome on Security Deposit

Profit on Sale of Property Plant & Machinery
Profit on Sale of Assets

Profit on Sale of Shares

Net gain Arising On BullionsMeasured at Fair Value through Profit

and Loss

Rental lncome

Parking Fees Received

446.79

24.96

29.84

57.50

38.35

81.98

10.10

229.25
473.50

10.91

33.14
154.35

L73.OO

3 7 8.65

9.80

20.47

153.69

5 7.83

20.L4
80.51

42.88

7.73

64.34

0.10

Total other lncome 1,500.19

Note 35 : Cost of Materials Consumed ( { in Lakhs}

For the Year Ended

31st March 2024
For the Year Ended

31st March 2025Particulars

12,655.39
1,9?,94s.22

1,96,452.30

72,65s.39

2,05,500.61

22,287,17

lnventory at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases & Procurement expenses

earLess; lnvento at the end of the
1,83, 796.97L,al,313.44camUtaterial Consumed

NIACCOUNI

o
oY

t
o t

LK

Particulars

t77.3L

Particulars

1,009.08

t4,820.79
1,81,631.51
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Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

Note 36 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-trade and work-in-progress ( I in takhs)

Particulars
For the Year Ended

31st March 2025
For the Year Ended

31st March 2024

lnventories at the Beginning of the Year:

Finished goods
Work-in-Progress

lnventories at the End of the Year:

Finished goods

Work-in-Progress

t6,468.70
7,478.46

13,L32.9L
8,543.41

23,947.t6 27,776.32

19,632.88

6,407.23

L6,46a.70

7,478.46

26,040.11 27,947.16

Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-trade and work-
in-progress

(2,092.95) (2,170.84)

Note 37 : Employee benefits expenses (t in takhs)

Particulars
For the Year Ended

31st March 2025

For the Year Ended

31st March 2024

Directors Remuneration

Salaries and WaBes

Contribution to Provident and other Fund

Staff Welfare Expenses

522.32
4,7 52.94

277 .00

77 4.96

471.37

3,677 .29

229.93

135.11

5,727.22 4,sL4.64

Note 38 : Finance costs (l in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the Year Ended

31st March 2025

For the Year Ended

31st March 2024

lnterest on

-U nsecured Loans

-Secured Loans

Finance Expenses (Lease)

L/C Discounting Charges Paid

Other Borrowing Cost

7,237.23

2,342.0t
369.38

1,852.15
588.20

799.64

2,490.27

308.37
1,60L.73

627 .02

Total Finance Cost 6,488.97 5,827.O1

ACC0ufiTAltTs
CHARIERED

H

Y
o

o

* 't

AJ

(K
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Notes Forming Palt of the Consolidated Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

Note 39 : Depreciation, Amortisation and lmpairment Expenses ( l in l-akhs)

Pa rticu lars
For the Year Ended

31st March 2025

For the Year Ended

31st March 2024

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment (Refer Note 3)

Depreciation on Right to Use Assets (Refer Note 6)

Depreciation of lntangible Assets (Refer Note 4)

1,93t.L7
490.82
97.68

1,584.11

228.95
47.96

Depreciation 2,5t9.67 1,8ss.02

Note 40 : Other Expenses (< in Lakhs)

Pa rticu la rs
For the Year Ended

31st March 2025

For the Year Ended

31st March 2024

Consumption of Stores & Spares

Power and Fuel

carriage lnward
lnsurance

Labour Charges

Loading & Unloading Charges

Rates & Taxes

Repairs to :

(i) Euilding
(ii) Machinery
(iii) Others

Security Expenses

Other manufacturing / operating expenses

Advertisement
Brokerage and Commission
Freight & transportation charges

Ocean Freight

Clearing & Forwarding Expense

Consultancy
Legal & Professional Charges

Loss on Sale of Assets

Postage, Telegram & Telephone

Travelling & Conveyance

Sundry Bal. Written Off
Turnover Discount

Sales Promotion
Audit Fees (Refer Note No tl4)

Audit Fees- Others

Rent and Hire charges

CSR Expenses (Refer Note No 41)

Membershio & Subscriotion
Allowance for Credit Loss

M iscella neous ex e nSes

6,973.42
2,222.95

1,089.07
243.47

6,722.80
343.37

40.76

42.9L
106.38
233.10
485.12
431.s9
393.49
2t3.29

4,401.76
449.20

344.55
226.54

389.87

0.54

128.31

972.29
40.83

764.58
1,334.48

72.38
7.62

399.37
115.09

42.78

26.26
243.27

7 ,239.56
2,r76.78
1,148.81

195.45

6,449.r7
372.O7

422.35

2t4.72
207.54
26s.05
404.7 6

374.lt
353.94
Ls7 .25

3,035.88
185.97
273.45

163.31

537.76

163.80

842.90
48.07

720.04
505.23

12.27

70.24

321.85
75.50
14.20

23.98

223.52

Total Expenses 27,L73.95

{ERED \
urle\TS/ s)

lt

29,381.58

/,



Utkarsh India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

Note 41 : Corporate Social Responsibiity (CSR)

Q'=:s*:

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at

least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social

responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting

education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation,activities are eradication of hunger and

malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and reha bilitation,environment

sustainability, disaster relief, COVID-19 relief and rural development projects. A CSR committee has been formed

by the Holding company as per the Act. The funds were primarily utilized through the year on these activities

which are specified in Schedule Vll of the Companies Act, 2013:

Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure:
( { in takhs)

Sl.No
For the Year Ended

31st March 2024
Pa rticu la rs

For the Year Ended

31st March 2025

6
11

1

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

9

10

N/A
l. Eraolcatlon Or nunger 6.

Poverty

2. Promotion of Education

3. Promoting Medical

Facilities

4. Animal Welfare

5. Development of Art &
cultu re

7 5.30

(0.20)

4.00

64.00

5.00
2.50

N/A
r. Eraorcduon ot nunBer 5r

Poverty

2. Promotion of Education

3. Promoting Medical

Facilities

4. Animal Welfare

5. Development of Art &
Culture

(3.22l|

50.20
54.74

8.2 5

2.50

Amount required to be spent by the holding

company d uring the year
Amount of expend itu re incurred
a)Construction / acquisition of any asset

b)On purposes other than (a) above
c) Eradication of Hunger and Proverty
d) Promotion of Ed ucation
e) Promoting Medical Facilities

f) Animal Welfare
g) Development of Art & Culture

Amount of expenditure incurred for previous

year's shortfall
Shortfall at the end of the year

Total of previous years shortfall
Reason for shortfa ll

Amount unspent, if any;

Excess Amount spent for the Financial Year

Details of related party transactions

Where a provision is made with respect to a

liability incurred by entering into a contractual

obligation, the movements in the provision

N th" y"ur rhall be shown separately

Natu re of CSR activities

o

t (rtoL

c
I

777.87



Utkarsh India Limited

Notes Forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

Q.+^e=,.

Note 42 : Contingencies

ln the ordinary course of business, the Group faces claims and assertions by various parties. The group assesses

such claims and assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external

legal counsel, wherever necessary. The group records a liability for any claims where a potential loss is probable

and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its financial statements, if material' For potential

losses that are considered possible but not probable, the group provides disclosure in the financial statements but

does not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probable.

The following is a description of claims and assertions where a potential loss is possible, but not probable. The

Group believes that none of the contingencies described below would have a material adverse effect on the

Group'sfinancial condition, results of operations or cash flow.

Note 42A: contingent Liobilities ( in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the Year Ended

31st March 2024

(a) Bills discounted by banks 9,464.90

b Excise Duty ,Cess/SHE Cess on consi ment sale 18.38

Total 9,483.28 8,625.07

Note 428 : Copitol Commitments (in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the Year Ended

31st March 2025

For the Year Ended

31st March 2024

Estimated ndin Ca ital Work in Pro ressa L57.77

Total L57.77

Note 43: Disclosures Under IND-AS ( { in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the Year Ended

31st March 2025

For the Year Ended

31st March 2024

Earnin r share

Net profit / (loss) after taxes for the year from

o e rations

5,492.65 5,322.81

Wei hted avera e number of e ul shares 1,01,86,0 00 7,78,70,500

Par value er share

Earnin s er share from O erations - Basic 53.92

Weighted average number of equity shares Post 2,35,35,898 1,78,70,500

Par value er sha re 10.00 10.00

Earnings per share from Ope rations - Diluted 23.34 29.79

Note 44: Auditors' remuneration {excluding goods and service tax} and expenses : ( I in Lakhs)

As at
31st March, 2024

8.00
4.00

8.38

4.00

Pa rticulars

Statutory Audit Fees

12.0012.38

For the Year Ended

31st March 2025
8,606.59

18.38

10.00 10.00
29.79

As at
31st March, 2025



Utkarsh India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31st March. 2025

Note 45 : Related Party Disclosures (As per lnd AS 24 - Related Party Oisclosures)

Nature Name o, the Related Party

Key Management Personnel of the Holding
Company- Utkarsh lndia Limited

Mr. Sunil Bansal 'Chairman & Managing Director
Mr. Utkarsh Bansal - Executive Director

Mr. Asish Chakraborty - Director (Technical) (Appointed wef O1't December 2024)

Mr. Manoj Agarwal - Director (Commercial) (Appointed wef 1srh July 2024)

Mr. Harvinder Singh Sandhu (Resigned wef 21!i September 2024)
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta - Company Secretary

Mr. Punit Jain - CFO

Key N4anagement Personnel of the Subsidiary

Company- Dadi-Ma Steels (lndia) Pvt Ltd

Mr, Utkarsh Bansal- Director

Mr, Sunil Kumar Agarwal- Oirector

Non Executive Director (NED) of the Holding

Company

Mr. Joginder Pal Dua - lndependent Director (Appointed wef0lst April 2024)

Mr. Sumantra Choudhury - lndependent Director

Mr.Prithviraj Basu (Resigned wef 31'r March 2024)
Mrs. Seema Sharma - Women Director

Relative of KMP Mrs. Shreya Bansal

The following tables provide the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related panies for the relevant financial year:

Enterpriies over which KMP

and/or their relativ€s have

significant influence
KMP/NED Total

Current Year Previour Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

(il Remuneration to key manaterial personnel

Mr. Sunil Bansal 300.00 247.50 300.00 247 .50

Mr. Utkarsh Bansal 168.00 138.00 168.00 138.00

Late Mr. Dilip Kumar Pratiher 25.86 25.46

Mr. Subhash Kumar Saraf 2.a6 28.46 2.86 28.46

Mr. Harvinder 5ingh 5andhu 16.17 31.50 \6.77 31.s0
Mr. Asish Chakraborty 10.00 10.00

Mr. Manoj Agarwal 2s.29 25.29

(ii) Sitting fees

Mr. Prithviraj Basu 5.7 4 5.7 4

Mr. Sumantra Choudhury 6.00 5.00

Mrs. Seema Sharma 3.40 2.40 2.40

Mr.loginder Pal Dua 2.00 2.00

Compensation to KMP Current Year Previous Year

Short Term Employment Eenefits
Post Employment Benefits (Refer Note below)
Other tongTerm Employment Benefits (Refer Note below)

537.83 434 t0

Note -Post employment Benefits and Long term employment Benefits are determined on basis of Acturial Valuation for the Holding company as a whole

and segregration is not available.

Nature of Tran5action

6.00 6.00

3.40



Utkarsh India Limited
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Notes Forming Paft of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

Note 45 : Employee Benefits

(a) Deflned Contribution Plan :

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will

have no legal or constructive obliEation to pay further amounts. The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards Government

administered provident fund scheme. Under the PF Scheme, contributions are made by both the Group and its eligible employees to the Fund,

based on currcnt salaries.

(b)oefined Beneflt Plan (Fundedl !

The Group has a defined benefit 6ratuity plan. Every employee who have completed at least five years or more of service is entitled to Gratuity

on terms not less favorable than the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity scheme is a final salary Defined B!nefit Plan

that provides for a lump sum payment made on exit either by way of retirement, death, disability or voluntary withdrawal. The banefits are

defined on the basis of final salary and the period of service and paid as lump sum at exit,

The scheme is funded by way of a separate irrevocable Trust and the Group is expected to make regular contributions to the Trust. The fund is

managed by an insurance Group and the assets are invested in their conventional group gratuity product. The fund value is subiect to market

risk as the price of the units may go up or down on any tiven day. Although we know that the fund manager invests the funds as per products

approved by IRDA and investment guidelines as stipulated under section 101 of lT Act, the exact asset mix is unknown and not publicly available.

The Trust assets managed by the fund manager are highly liquid in nature and we do not expect any significant liquidity risks.

The Trustees are responsible for the investment of the assets of the Trust as well as the day to day administration of the scheme, Administrative

expenses of the trust are met by the Group. The Trustees are required to conduct necessary business e.g. Approval of Trust's Financial

Statements, Review lnvestment performance.

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary overtime. Thus,

the Group is exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as followsi

lnterest Rate Risk: The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. lf bond yields fall, the defined

benefit obligation will tend to increase.

Liquidity Rlsk: This is the risk that the Group is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non-availabilty of

enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

Salary Escalation Risk:The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan

participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan panicipants from the rate of increase in salary used to

determine the present value of oblgation will have a bearing on the plan's liabilty.

Demographic Risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal,

disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the

combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. lt is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financlal analysis

the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee.

Regulatory Risk : Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act , 1972(as amended from time to

time). There is a risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts (e.g. lncrease in the maximum limit on gratuity of 120,m,000).

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31 March,

2025 by lndependent, Qualified Actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past

service cgst, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Gratuity and (xher Post-Employment Benefit Plans

( in Lakhs

As at 31st March, 2024As at 31st March 2025

GratuityGratuity
changes in Defined Benefit Obligation

458.13

69.54

33.67

34.08

l2s.27l

s66.25

80.95

40.31

(100.6e)

(14.41)

Present value obligation as at the start of the year

Current service cost

lnterest cost

Actuarial Loss/ (Gain) on Obligations

Benefits paid

566.25Present Value Obligation as at the End ofthe Year 572.48
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Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March,2024
Break up of Service Cost

G.atuity G.atuity

Past Service Cost

Current Service Cost

Curtailment Cost / (Credit) on plan amendments

Settlement Cost / (Credit) on plan amendments

80.96 69.64

Service Cost at the end ofthe Year 80.96 69.64

I in Lakhs

(t in Lakhs)

change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March,2024

Gratuity Gratuity

Plan assets at beginning of period

Acquisition adiustment
lnterest lncome
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in lnterest lncome - Gain

/ (Loss)
Employer Contributions
Mortality Charges and Taxes

Benefits paid

Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets at the end of Period

Actual return on plan assets

171.50

72.31

0.83

o:10

(14.41)

186.80

13.73

0.23

1:02

l2e.28l

Plan assets at the end of Period 177.33 772.50

Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st Mar€h, 2024

Gratuity Gratuity
Current service cost
lnterest cost

80.96
28.O1

69.64
19.95

(lncome)/ Expense recognised in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss

I in Lakhs

As at 31st March 2025 As at 3Lst March, 2024
Amount recognired in OCI

Gratuity Gratuity

(34.08)

0.23

Opening amount recognised in OCI outside profit and loss account

Remeasurement for the year -obligation (Gain)/ Loss

Remeasurement for the year -plan asset (Gain)/ Loss

Total Remeasurements Cost / (Credit ) for the year recognised in OCI

100.69

0.83

(33.8s)Actuarial (Gains)/ l-osses recognized in OCI 101.52

I

109.03 89.59
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Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

l in Lakhi

As at 31st March, 2024As at 31st March 2025

GratuityGratuity
Amount recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

566.26

t72.50

69.89

496.37

572.44

t11.32

58.76

573.72

Present value of obligation at the end of period

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of period

Surplus / (Deficit)

Current liability

Non-current Liability

Amount not recognised due to asset ceiling

(393.7s)(401.17)Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in consolidated Balance Sheet

Actuarial assumptions

FinancialAssumptions
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March,2024

Gratuity Gratuity

Discount Rate

Rate of increase in salaries

6.77/o P.a

7 .OOYo P.a

7.73%p.a

7.OO% p.a

Demggraphic Assumptions
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Gratuity Gratuity

Mortality Rate

Normal Retirement Age

100% of IALM 2012-14

58

100% of IALM 2012-14

58

Attrition Rates, based on a8e (% p.a.) LO.OO% LO.OO%

The discount rate indicated above reflects the estimated timing and currency of benefit payments. lt is based on the Yields / rates available on

applicable bonds as on the current valuation date.

Senritivity Analysis

Particulars
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Gratuity Gratuity

lmpact ofthe change in discount rate
lmpact due to increase of 0.5%

lmpact due to decrease of 0.5%

lmpact of the chant€ in salary rate
lmpact due to increa5e of 1%

lmpact due to decrease of 1%

lmpad of the chanSe in withdrawal rate
lmpact due to increase of 5%

lmpact due to decrease of 5%

555.20

590.83

607.30
540.75

596.78
538.28

563.22

567.64

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of

reasonable chanSes

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of

reasonable

562.4r
583.98

550.73

582.69
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Note 47 : Financial lnstruments

Dlsclosures gn Finonciol lnstruments

This section explains the judgements and estlmates made in dete.mining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured

at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The details of material accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expentes

are recognised, in respect oI each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.

(a) Categories of Financial lnstruments

As at 31rt March 2025
(Amount in l)

OCI Amortised Cost

I in Lakhs

24,170,90
135.28

2,307.36

202.91

27 ,77 4.97

70,736.98
566.21

25,210.04
1,338.99

758.52

9,97 4.63

3,566.19
159.64

27,288.34
289.67

3,033.70
50.00

222.70

31,959.48

23,722.56
589.55

39,427 .65

2,r32.67

1,085.62

17,207.76
3,340.51

765.74

557.27

482.97

7 4.36

Non Current Financial Assets
(i)lnvestments
(ii) lnvestments in Associates
(iii) Other Financial Assets

Current Financial Assets
(i)Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(iii) Bank Balance other than Above
(iv)Loans
(v) Other Financial Assets

Total FinancialArrets
Non Current Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease Liabilities
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

Current Financial tiabilitie5
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease Liabilities
(iii) Trade Payable
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities

7,067.71

970.80
96.31

61,552.6879,979.25Total Financial Liabilities

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of

their fair value since the group does not anticipate that the carryinB amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be

received or rettled.
(b) Fair value Hlerarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's Assets

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured

at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indicatlon about the

reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the

accounting standards.

Level 1: Level t hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices as at the reporting date.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use

of observable market data and rely as tittle as possible on entity-tpecific estimates. lf all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are

observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: lf one or more of the significant inputs is not baged on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

I in Lakhs

level 3Level 1 Level 2tinancial Asset measured at fair value - recurrinB fair value managements

941 .37

464.01

21.43

18.90

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 315t

March 2025

lnvestment5
quantitative disElosures fair value measurement hierarchy fot assett as at 31st

March 2024

lnvestments--

Utkarsh India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

FVTPL

As at 31st March 2024
(Amount in l)

ryTPL OCI Anpnlsed Cost
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Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

NOTE 48 : FINANCIAI RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(gx--::r

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings in domestic currency, trade and other payables. Ihe main purpose of these

financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations. The Group's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, cash

and cash equivalents, investments at cost/fair value and deposits, that derive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management oversees the management of these risks.

The 6roup's senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk

governance framework for the Group. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the Group's senior management that the Group's

financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in

accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and aBrees policies for managing each risk, which are

summarised as below:

Market risk

Market risk means that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The goal

of market risk management is optimization of profit and controlling the exposure to market risk within acceptable limits. Market risk

comprises three types of risk: 'Commodity Price risk' and 'lnterest rate risk', 'Foreign Currency Risk' .

(al lnterest rate risk

lnterest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. Any movement in the reference rates

could have an impact on the croup's cash flows as well as costs. The Group is subject to variable interest rates on some of its interest bearing

liabilities. The Group's interest rate exposure is mainly related to debt obligations.

lnterest rate sensitlvity

Based on the composition of debt as at March 31, 2023, a 50 basis points change in interest rates would increase/ decrease the Group's

finance costs (before interest capitalised) and thereby consequently change net profit before tax by approximately Rs. for the year ended

December 31,2023

The risk estimates assume a parallel shift of 50 basis points interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation also assumes that the change

occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are

not necessarilv reoresentative of the averaee debt outstandins durine the oeriod.

(b) Foreitn currency Risks

The Group's functional currency is lndian Rupees (lNR). The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently,

exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Volatility in exchange rates affects the Group's revenue from export markets and the costs of
imports.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange

rates. The Group's exposure in foreign currency is in trade liabilities & trade assets denominated in foreign currency. Any weakening of the

functional currency may impact the Group's cost of imports.
Adverse movements in the exchange rate between the Rupee and any relevant foreign currency result's in increase in the Group's overall

liabilit in Rupee terms without the Group having incurred additional debt and favourable movements in the exchange rates will conversely

result in reduction in the Group's receivables in foreign currency.

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Value ln Foreign Currency Value ln INR
Nature of ltem Currency

Value ln Foreign Currency Value ln INR

4 ,34 ,60,41.4 .37 s61,023.31 50,54,561.00Receivables (Net) U5 Dollar (S) ss.10,s18,20
12,28,458.00€ -5,335.71 (4,90,138,32) € 19,633.47Receivables (Net) Euro (€)

5t7 ,7 4 ,644 .7 6 9 ,85 ,O5 ,7 09 .57Payable (Net) US Dollar (S) s20,91,081.49 18,01,88,491.99

€ -24,500,00 (22,24,3ss.00)Payable (Net) Euro (€)

6,05,19,605.1259 ,23 ,894 .21 1 ,96 ,77 ,964 .O8 57,21,674.28FCNRB US Dollar (S)
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Notes Forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025
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credlt rlsks

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers and others. ln addition, credit risk arises from financial

guarantees.

The Group implements a credit risk management policy under which the Group only transacts business with counterparties that have a certain

level of credit worthiness based on internal assessment of the parties, financial condition, historical experience, and other factors. The

Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The Group has established a credit

policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables,

The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss

component that are expected to occur. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for similar

financial assets. Debt securities are analyzed individually, and an expected loss shall be directly deducted from debt securities.

(ll credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31st

March 2025, 31st March 2024 are as follows:

I in Lakhs)

(ii) lmpairment tosses on Financial Assets

Refer the table below for reconciliation of loss allowance in respect of Trade Receivables:

As at 31st March 2024As at 31st March 2025Particulars

24,370.90
135.28

2,307.36
202.97

482.97

7 5A.52

21 ,288.38
289.67

3,033.70
222.10

970.80
1,085.62

Non current financial assets

(i) lnvestments
(ii)others
current financial assets

(i)Trade Receivables

(ii)Cash and Cash Equivalents

(iii) Bank Balance other than Above

{iv} Other Financial Assets
28,257.4432,890.28Total Financial assets

< in takhs

As at 31st March 2024Particulars

261.80

23.98
285.78

26.30
Loss allowance at the beginning of the year

Add: Loss Allowance provided during the Year

Less: Loss Allowance reversed duri the ear

245.74312.09Loss Allol{a!!gat the end of the Year

t

As at 31st March 2025
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Notes Forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025
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(B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the croup will not be able to settle or meet its obliSations on time or at reasonable price The Group's

objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and liquidity requirements, The Group closely monitors its

liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. lt maintains adequate source of financing through the use of short term

bank deposits, short term loans, short term commercial papers and cash credit facility. Processes and policies related to such risks are

overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Group's liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash

flows. The Group assessed the concentration of risk with respect to its debt and concluded it to be low,

Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities
t in Lakhs

TotalMore than 1 YearLess Than 1 YearAs at 31st March 2025

34,323.72
39,427.65
2,132.67

11,201.1623,722.56
39,427 .65

2,132.67

Borrowings
Trade Payables

Other Current Financial Liabilities

TotalMore than 1 YearLess Than l YearAs at 31st March 2024

30,711.61

25,2tO.O4

1,338.99

9,974.6320,736,98

25,270.O4

1,338.99

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Current Financial Liabilities

I in Lakhs

Note 49: Capital Management

Rirk management

The fundamental goal of capital management are to: - safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and - maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Board of Directors has the primary responsibility to maintain a strong capital base and reduce the cost of capital through prudent

management of deployed funds and leveraging opportunities in domestic and international financial markets so as to maintain investor,

creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business

For the purpose of Group's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The Group manages its capital

structure in light of changes in the economic and regulatory environment and the requirements of the financial covenants.

The Group manages its capital on the basis of net debt to equity ratio which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt are long-term and

short-term debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents. The Group is not subject to any externallY imposed capital requirements

The following table summarizes the capital ofthe Group:
I in Lakhs

As at 315t March 2025
unt in

9,97 4.63

20,736.98
(13s.28)

30,576.33

38,232.36
0.800

11,201.16

23,122.56

\289.67)
34,034.05

43,800.98
0.777

Long Term borrowings

Short Term Borrowings

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net Debt

ratio(Gearin Ratio)

(i) Eq capital & all reserves of the GrouP

As at 31st March 2024
(Amount in t)Particulars

Equity

Net Debt to Equitv
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Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

Note 50 : Tax Expenses (< in Lakhs)

50.1 Amount recotnised in Consolidated Profit or Loss
For the Year Ended

31st March 2025

For the Year Ended

31st March 2024

Current Tox:

lncome Tax for the year

Charge/(Credit) in respect of Current Tax for earlier years

Total Current Tax

Deferred fdx:
Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences

lmpact of change in tax rate

Total Deferred Tax

1,695.19

s.93

t,97L.17
114.03

L,7OI.LL

266.36 27!.86

266.36 27L.86

TotalTax Expenses r,967.47 2,297 .06

(t in Lakhs)

50.2 Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive lncome
For the Year Ended

31st March 2025

For the Year Ended

31st March 2024

The lax (Charge)/ Credit arising on lncome and Expenses recognised in Other

Comprehensive Income is as follows:

oeferred Tax

On ltems thot will not be Reclossilied to Profit or Loss

Remeasurement Gains/(Losses) on Defined Benefit Plans

Equity lnstruments through Ocl

8.5 2

Total (2s.ss) 8.s2

oY

I

o
AJE

(oLK

2,O25.20

(2s.ss)
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I{otes Forming Part of the consolidated Financial statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

Note : 51 Leases LiabilitY:

(i) Lease liability is initially measured at the present value of future lease payments. Lease payments are discounted using the

interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate' Lease liability is

subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and reducing the carrying

amount to reflect the lease payments made. A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a chanSe

in the lease term or a change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the

leased assets.

(ii) The amount of ROU Assets and Lease Liabilities recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet are disclosed in Note 5 and Note

2L and z? respectively. The total cash outflow for leases for the year is Rs. 566.21 la khs (31st March, 2024 - Rs' 270.73 lakhs)

(in Lokhs)

As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March,2024

NON - CURRENT

Lease Liabilities Payable beyond 12 months

CURRENT

Lease Liabilities Payable within 12 months

3,340.51

s89.5 s

3,566.19

566.27

Total 3,930.07 4,t32.40

The movement in Leose Liobilities (Non-current ond current) is ds tollows: (in Lokhs)

Particulars As at 31 March,2025 As at 31 March, 2024

Balance as at Beginning of the Year

Add: Addition

Add: Accretion of lnterest

Less: Payments

Lessi Others (including foreclosure)

4,132.40

363.88

(s65.21)

3,276.06

823.73

303.34

127O.73)

closing balance as at 31st March 3,930.07 4,132.40

Maturity analysis of Lease Liabilities
(in Lokhs)

Term As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024

1st year s89.55 566.21.

2nd year 58s,78 589.55

3rd year 307.08 58s.78

4th year 374.23 307.08

5th year 324.98 3L4.23

Beyond 5 years 6,967 .27 7 ,292.25

The rate for discounting of lease liability is 9.O75%

Particulars
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Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 52: cOMPOSITION SCHEME oF ARRANGEMENT

The Board of Directors of Utkarsh lndia Limited ("Holding company" or "UlL" or "Transferee Company"), at its

meeting held on 27.h June, 2024 had considered and approved the Composite Scheme of Arrangement

("Scheme") amongst 1) Wise Dealcom Private Limited (WDPL), 2)Yogmaya Vincom Private Limited (YVPL),3)

precot Dealcomm Private Limited (PDPL),4)Utkarsh Power Private Limited (UPPL), 5)Nayantara Distributors

private Limited (NDPL), 6)Cosmic Tracom Private Limited (CrPL), 7)Arundhati Suppliers Private Limited (ASPL),

8)Dover Tie-Up private Limited (DTUPL), 9)PrestiSe Tie-up Private Limited (PTUPt), 10)Raisin Tradecom Private

Limited (RTPL), 11)Utkarsh Pipes Limited (uPt) & 12)Raj Laxmi Goods Private Limited (RLGPL) (hereinafter

referred to as the Transferor Companies') and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230to

232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench, (Hon'ble NCLT) vide its Main Order dated 2f.O3.2025

(Rectified Order dated 19.06.2025 and Certified Order dated 04.08.2025) has approved the said Scheme with the

'Appointed Date' as 1..t April, 2024. Consequent upon filing of the said Scheme with Registra r of Companies, West

Bengal, the Scheme has become effective from 4'h August, 2025 with an'Appointed Date'i.e., 1'r April,2024 in

terms of the Order of Hon'ble NCLT. Accordingly, the effect of the scheme which is a common control transaction

has been taken in the books ofthe Holding Company.

All assets, liabilities and reserves of the Transferor companies is transferred to and recorded in the book of the

Holding Company at their respective book values as appearing in the books of account of the Transferor

Companies immediately preceding the appointed date.

post merger the business undertaking of all the 12 Transferor companies are amalgamated with Utkarsh lndia

Limited ("Part ll of the Scheme") and recorded for in the books of account of Utkarsh lndia Limited as per "Pooling

of lnterest Method" as described in Appendix C of lndian Accounting Standard (lnd AS) 103- "Business

Combinations" prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with relevant rules thereunder.

The Holding company has issued and alloted 1,33,49,898 equity shares of the face value of 10/- each in the

proportion of the number of equity shares held by the shareholders of Transferor Companies in the Transferor

company during the year

"Furthet pursuant to the Scheme existing shares of the Holding Company held by the Transferor Companies i.e.

76,84,500 fully paid-up equity shares of 10/- each, were cancelled/extinguished."

Upon Amalgamation, the difference between the asset, liabilities, reserves including amalgamation adjustment

account are ad.iusted with General Reserve and Retained Earning amounting to Rs 3,642.06 Lakhs in the books

of the Holding Company.
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The details of Assets, Liabilities and Reserves are given below:

Adjusted with Retained Earning

Q'xr:g-'

Partic ula rs Amount (in lacs)
lnvestment in share of transferee - appeared in the books of transferor 2729.97
lnvestment in share of transferee - Cancelled ursuant to amalgamation 12729.97\
Share Capital issued to transferor - Cancelled Pursuant to amalga mation 786.4s
Amal8amation Equity Share issued to the equity shareholders of transferee 1334.99
Amalgamation Adjustment Account NIL
Capital Reserve - appeared in the book of transferor NIL
Capital Reserve due to Demerger NIL

Securities Premium - appeared in the books of transferor
Retained Earnings - appeared in the books of transferor 422.38
Statutory Reserve Fund - appeared in the books of transferor NIL
Equity lnstruments through Other Comprehensive lncome - appeared in the books
of transferor

NIL

Adjusted with General Reserve 3337.84

304.22

Utkarsh India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

3523.45
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Notes to the consolidated Financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note 53 i Disclosure requirement under IND As

i) Erpenditure in ForeiEn Currency (on accrual basis) ( I in Lakhs)

March 2024
As at 31st

March 2025
tu at 31st

Particulars

2\.37
18,147.97

116.63

11.53

10s.39

820.27

21,4@.48
95.88

0.66
55.46

lmport of Capital goods

lmport of Raw Material

TravellinB e)(penses

Commission

Others

ii) Earnin8s in ForeiSn Currency (on accrual basis) ( a in Lakhs)

a
Particulars

3334.125367.75Exports

he Group did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Compani

Act, 1956 durin8 the FinancialYear

Note 55 : lnvestor Education and Protection Fund

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and Protection Fund

Note 56: Segment RePorting

he Grouo is primarily engaged in the bsuiness of Manufacturing Activity. The management reviews the business as a single operating seSment,

Additional tnformation, as required under Schedule lll to the Companies Act 2013 of the enterprises consolidated as 5ubsidiary/ Associates

Note 54 : Oisclosure of Transactions with Struck off Companies

accordingly, no separate segment information has been disclosed

Note 57 | Other Oisclosures

TCIoctShare of Profit or LossNet Assets i.e Total tusets
Minus Total Liabilities

Yeat 2024-25Yeat 2024-25\eat 2024-25

As%of
consolidated

TCI

Amount
As%of

consolidated
ocl

Amount

tu%of
consolidated

Profit and Loss

As%oI
consolidated

Net Assets

Name of the Entity

14.47%) \249.971

95.51%

453 368.11%

47 600.85%

5,590.100%

75.91

15.97

100%

100%5,514.62

5,263 63

453 36

1011

47 60

(260.08)

95.45v"

8.22%

0.78%

0.86%

\4.12vo1

100%

43,567.60

3,15188

2,300.48

l.s,635.27)

43,E36.04

451 35

(12.86%)

99.39%

1.19%

1 03%

5.25%

100%

Holding Company

tltkarsh lndia Limited

B. Subsidiary Company

(a)lndian Subsidiary

1. Dadi-Ma steels (lndia)

Private Limited

C. lnvestment in LLP

Madhuvan Structurals LLP

o.fusociates {lnvestment

as per Equity Method)
(a) lndian Company

Utkarsh Metal Industries

Private Limited

E.Consolidation

otal

tments

I

AJH

k
o
*

oTK

o

\eat 2024-25

5,339.60



Utkarsh India Limited

Notes to the consotidated Financial statements as at and for the Year ended 31st March, 2025

Proportion of ownership lnterest and Voting Power held by

the Groirp
31st March 202431st March 2025

Place

Incorporation
of Business

Principle ActivityName of the subsidiary

100%
lndia

100%Rental and LeasinS ActivitiesDadi-Ma Steels (lndia) Private Limited

100%lndia 100%Rental and Leas ng ActivrtLesMadhuvan Structurals LLP

Additional ReSulatory lnformation

Amended schedule lll requires additional regulatory information to be provided in financialstatements.

a) Details of Behami Property held :1he Group do€s not hold any Bennmi Property and henc€ there p roceedi gs n itlated pendi c aEa ns

the Group for holding any benami prope

dlsclosure is required to be given as such-

rty nde T ta nsact io Act, 1988 a d he RU e ade h e TE h ce

b) Wilful Defaulter : The Group has not been declared as wilful defaulter as at the date of the balance sheet or on the date of approval of the flnancial

statements. hence no disclosure i5 required a5 such.

c) Retistration of CharSes or Satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC) : There are no charges against the companies which are Yet to be reSistered

or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, hence no disclosures are required as such.

d) Compliance with number of layers of companies :

with the number of layers prescribed under Clause (

Rules, 2017, hence no disclosure is required as such.

The 6 p doe not h ave n vest m n a d n st Tea rn mpa for h tch it com p

8't sect io 2 h e Compa e5 2013 rea d h Co pa e5 Restrid io NU b of laye rs

e) Title Deeds Held in the name of the Group : Tltle Deeds oI Freehold land and Building are in the name of the Group.

0 Advance, loan or lnvestment in Ultimate Beneficiaries through intermediaries:

i) No funds (which are material either individually or in aSSregate) have been

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any oth
a d VA ce d ot oa ned veSted e ther fro b ds OT h a e

p e rso n (s nt e ncl d nc forei8 entities nterm ed ia rie5 ),

h h d d eth rd d ti c o h at the nte rmed a h t, d red ly d ctlY len d o ot h e
e rs ta n ng, et reco e I

nt it ie d nt ifi ed n n e h atS0ever by OT b e h of h Gro p or Provide a 8ua ta tee Secu rity o
p e r50 n ol e e

ke n b half of h e U Ir ima te

ii) No funds (which are material either individually or in aS8regate) have b

entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understandinS, whether recorded in

or invest in other person5 or entities identified in any manner whatsoever

guarantee, security or the lake on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

ee rece ved by h e GroU p an pe r50 n e ntity n clud ng fo re

ng lse, h at the Grou p sh a d rect ly ol n d ct ly, len

by on b e ha lf of the F tl n d g a "U It imate o

g) Utilisation of Borrowings from Banks/Fl - The Group has used the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was taken at

balance sheet date

o
+

t

H4

f
o
o

XAth

The Subsidiaries considered in the preparation of these consolidated Financial Statements is:

the Benami (Prohibitions) u nder,

has

whether, invest

("Ultimate Beneficiaries")

Beneficiaries.
or

whether,
Beneficiaries") provide



Utkarsh India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

h) Undisclosed lncome - The Group has no undisclosed transaction which has been surrended or disclosed as income durin8 the year in the

assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961.

i) Revaluation of property, Plant and Equipment - The Group has not revalued its Property Plant and Equipment duringthe Year.

) Details of Crypto Currency or Vinual Currenc,y : The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currenc,y during the financial year,

hence disclosure requirements for the same is not applicable.

k)Granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and related partles (as defined under Companies Act 2013) either severalV or jointly with any other pe6on

Group has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans to its promotors, directors, KMPs and related parties durinS the year

Figures of previous years have been regrouped / rearran8ed / rectified wherever necessary to make them comparable with the current periods fiSures

As per our report of even date attached. For and on behalf of the Eoard of Directors

For0KChhajer&Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 304138E Sunil Bansal

H Chairman & Managing Diredor
DrN - 00297336q"ufu4 o o

*
CA Aditya Madhogarhia

Partner

Membership No.304771

* mar Gupta

Company Secretary

FCS 6923

Place: Kolkata

Date : 5th oay of september 2025

Punit Jain

Chief Financial Officer
PAN- AFCPJ53OlE
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